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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS AND INFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Reportthe other reports, statements, and information weahave previously filed or that
may subsequently file with the Securities and Erg@gaCommission (“SEC"and public announcements that we have previoustjenoa ma
subsequently make include, may include, incorpdogteeference or may incorporate by reference cegtatements that may be deemed 1
forward-looking statements. The forwadbking statements included or incorporated byrexfee in this Annual Report and those rep
statements, information and announcements addotisgtias, events or developments that Reed'’s, (hereinafter referred to as “we,” “us,”
“our” or “Reed’s”) expects or anticipates will or may occur in theufat Any statements in this document about expeast beliefs, plan
objectives, assumptions or future events or perdmge are not historical facts and are forwamking statements. These statements are
but not always, made through the use of words sag@s such as “may,” “should,” “could,” “predictpotential,” “believe,” ‘will likely
result,” “expect,” “will continue,” “anticipate,” Seek,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “projection,™would” and “outlook” and simila
expressions. Accordingly, these statements investenates, assumptions and uncertainties, whicll @awse actual results to differ materi
from those expressed in them. Any forw#mdking statements are qualified in their entireyyreference to the factors discussed throughas
document. All forwardeoking statements concerning economic conditicaigs of growth, rates of income or values as nentluded in thi
document are based on information available to mshe dates noted, and we assume no obligatiorpdate any such forwaddoking
statements.

The risk factors referred to in this Annual Repoould cause actual results or outcomes to diffeterraly from those expressed in :
forward-looking statements made by us, and you lshoot place undue reliance on any such forwarditgg statements. Any forwardoking
statement speaks only as of the date on whichritade and we do not undertake any obligation tatgeny forwardeoking statement
statements to reflect events or circumstances #iféedate on which such statement is made or kectehe occurrence of unanticipated eve
New factors emerge from time to time, and it is passible for us to predict which will arise. Ind#ttbn, we cannot assess the impact of
factor on our business or the extent to which amwtdr, or combination of factors, may cause actesillts to differ materially from tho
contained in any forward-looking statements.

Management cautions that these statements ardiedddy their terms and/or important factors, mariywhich are outside of our contr
involve a number of risks, uncertainties and ofaetors that could cause actual results and evert#fer materially from the statements me
including, but not limited to, the following riskaétors.

° Our ability to generate sufficient cash flow to pap capital expansion plans and general operaiitigities,

° Decreased demand for our products resulting froamghs in consumer preferenc

° Competitive products and pricing pressures andability to gain or maintain its share of salestia marketplace

° The introduction of new produci

° Our being subject to a broad range of evolving feldetate and local laws and regulations includhngse regarding the labeling ¢

safety of food products, establishing ingredierdigieations and standards of identity for certaiodfy environmental protections,
well as worker health and safety. Changes in thesge and regulations could have a material effacthe way in which we produ
and market our products and could result in in@da®sts

° Changes in the cost and availability of raw matergad the ability to maintain our supply arrangateeand relationships and proc
timely and/or adequate production of all or anpof products

° Our ability to penetrate new markets and maintaiexpand existing market

° Maintaining existing relationships and expanding distributor network of our produc

° The marketing efforts of distributors of our prothjanost of whom also distribute products thatcampetitive with our product:

° Decisions by distributors, grocery chains, spegialtain stores, club stores and other customedéstmntinue carrying all or any

our products that they are carrying at any ti

° The availability and cost of capital to finance awarking capital needs and growth pla
° The effectiveness of our advertising, marketing pranotional program:

° Changes in product category consumpt

° Economic and political change

° Consumer acceptance of new products, including tast comparison

° Possible recalls of our products, ¢



° Our ability to make suitable arrangements for tb-packing of any of our product

Although we believe that the expectations refledtethe forwardiooking statements are reasonable, we cannot giagréunure results, leve
of activity, performance, or achievements.




PART |
Item 1. Business
Background

We develop, manufacture, market and sell naturalaicoholic carbonated soft drinks, kombucha, candied ice creams. We currer
manufacture, market and sell seven unique prodhues:|

e Ree(s Ginger Brews

e Virgil’s Root Beer, Cream Sodas, Dr. Better and Real @ulading ZERO diet soda

e Culture Club Kombuchg

e China Colas

e Ree(s Ginger Chews

e Ree(s Ginger Ice Creams, al

e Sonoma Sparkler Sparkling Juic
In addition, we have a growing private label busie
We sell most of our products in specialty gourmad aatural food stores (estimated at approximaded@0 smaller or specialty stores
approximately 3,000 supermarket format stores)esuprket chains (estimated at approximately 7,@6€es), retail stores and restauran
the United States and, to a lesser degree, in @ansld primarily sell our products through a netwofknatural, gourmet and indepenc
distributors. We also maintain an organizationrehouse sales managers who work mainly in the sgepsced by our natural, gourmet i
mainstream distributors and with our distributors.
We produce and cpack our beverage products in part at our facitityos Angeles, California, known as the Brewenyd avith the majorit
produced at a contracted co-packing facility inrf&stvania. The cqack facility in Pennsylvania supplies us with spdaducts for the easte
half of the United States and nationally for sodadpcts that we do not produce at The Brewery.

Key elements of our business strategy include:

e increase our relationship with and sales to theragpmately 13,000 supermarkets that carry our pctglin natural ar
mainstream

e expand our distribution network by adding regiotiaéct store delivery (DS's) and additional direct accoun
e stimulate consumer demand and awareness for ostirexbrands and products through promotions arndréiding,

e develop additional product flavors under our brafimand extensions) and other new products, inclyidpecialty packagil
and alternative uses for our produs

e develop and produce privi-label products for select custome
e |ower our cost of sales for our products by gaireegnomies of scale in our purchasing,
e optimize the size and focus of our sales force anage our relationships with distributors and fetatlets.

Our current sales effort is focused on building business in our approximately 13,000 natural améhstream supermarket accounts in
U.S. and Canada.

We create consumer demand for our products by:
e supporting i-store sampling programs of our produ
e generating free press through public relatic
e advertising in store publicatior

e maintaining a company websitwww.reedsgingerbrew.co),




e active social media campaigns on facebook.comtemiom and youtube.com, a
e participating in large public events as spons
Our principal executive offices are located at IB@®uth Spring Street, Los Angeles, California 9400Bur telephone number is (310) 217

9400. Our Internet address is (www.reedsgingerlmew). Information contained on our website or tisaficcessible through our web
should not be considered to be part of this AniRegiort.




Historical Development

Reeds Original Ginger Brew was created in 1987 by Gbpker J. Reed, our founder and Chief Executivéc®ff and was introduced to
market in Southern California stores in 1989. B®1,9ve began marketing our products through Unitatlral Foods Inc. (UNFI), and otl
natural food distributors and moved our productima larger facility in Boulder, Colorado.

In 1991, we incorporated our business operationtkarstate of Florida under the name of Originatd8age Corporation and moved all of

production to a co-pack facility in Pennsylvanidrgughout the 1990’s, we continued to develop andd¢h new Ginger Brew varieties. Reed’

Ginger Brews reached broad placement in naturabandmet foods stores nationwide through UNFI atfetiomajor specialty, natural/gourr
and mainstream food and beverage distributors.

In 1997, we began licensing the products of Chin&@nd eventually acquired the rights to that pobdn 2000. In 1999, we purchased
Virgil' s Root Beer brand from the Crowley Beverage Comp&my2000, we moved into an 18,000 square foot hause property, tl
Brewery, in Los Angeles, California, to house oursivcoast production and warehouse facility. Thewiry also serves as our princ
executive offices. In 2001, pursuant to a reincoaion merger, we changed our state of incorpamatoDelaware and also changed our r
to “Reed’s, Inc.”

On December 12, 2006, we completed the sale 0000 shares of our common stock at an offeringepof $4.00 per share in our ini
public offering. The public offering resulted inags proceeds of $8,000,000. Following the publferafg, we expanded sales and opera
dramatically, initially using a direct store deliyestrategy in Southern California, along with athegional independent direct store distribu
(DSD). The relationships with DSD’s were supportgdour sales staff. In 2007 we raised a net of &7,@00 in a private placement. We
focused our sales strategy to eliminate compangctistore delivery sales and to expand sales to’®&Bd natural food distributors o
national level. We also started selling directhstpermarket grocery stores, which has becomenéisant portion of our business today.

We continually introduce new products and line egtens, such as our Virgd'diet line of ZERO beverages introduced in 201d @n Bette
and Light 55 Calories Extra Ginger Brew in 2011. \Wsmmenced offering private label products in 2@b@ have increased that busit
significantly in 2012 and 2013. In 2012, we laurtHeur flavors of our Culture Club Kombucha lineathin 2013 was increased to ei
flavors.

Industry Overview

We offer natural premium carbonated soft drinksP;Svhich are a growing segment of the $10 bill@8D market nationwide. Within natu
food store markets, we are among the geffing natural soft drinks. This market is steaahyl growing. We also sell in major grocery ch
nationally. The trend in grocery stores is to expafferings of natural products and we have thdesaad capability to develop these di
customer relationships.

Our Products

We currently manufacture and sell 24 beverages, ¢dandies and three ice creams. We make all ofpoadlucts using premium aflatura
ingredients and our beverage line is GMO free. fimary brands are our Reed’s ginger brew line, dingil’ s line of root beer and c
Culture Club kombucha. Our candy products thatuiel Reed’s Crystallized Ginger Candy and Redihews represent a lesser portio
revenues, however, the products are popular aed aa¢ expanding. We also sell ginger ice cream.

Ree(s Ginger Brews

Ginger ale is the oldest known soft drink. Befored®arn soft drink technology existed, nalzoholic beverages were brewed at home dir

from herbs, roots, spices, and fruits. These hafidat brews were then aged like wine and highlggatifor their taste and their tonic, health

giving properties. Reed'Ginger Brews are a revival of this home brewiricaad we make them with care and attention to edmheness a
quality, using the finest fresh herbs, roots, spiemd fruits. Our expert brew masters brew eatthbaith fresh ginger.

We believe that Reed’'s Ginger Brews are uniquehdir tkettle-brewed origin among all mass-marketefi drinks. Reed Ginger Brew
contain between 8 and 26 grams of fresh gingevé@ryel2ounce bottle. We use pure cane sugar as the swee@ur products differ fro
commercial soft drinks in three particular chardstes: sweetening, carbonation and coloring foeager adult appeal. Instead of ut
injected-based carbonation, we produce our carimnaiaturally, through slower, beeriented techniques. This process produces sn
longer lasting bubbles that do not dissipate rgpicien the bottle is opened. We do not add colofTing color of our products comes natut
from herbs, fruits, spices, roots and juices antbewerages are GMO free.
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In addition, since Reed’'Ginger Brews are pasteurized, they do not requireontain any preservatives. In contrast, mog@@emmercial so
drinks generally are produced using natural anificgat flavor concentrates prepared by flavor ledtories, tap water, and highly refir
sweeteners. Typically, manufacturers make a céptpabcessed concentrate that will lend itself twvide variety of situations, waters ¢
filling systems. The final product is generally @dilled and requires preservatives for stability.l@e are added that are either nat
although highly processed, or artificial.

Our Reed’s line contains the following products:

e Reecs Original Ginger Brewwas our first creation and is a Jamaican recipd&éonemade ginger ale using 17 grams of |
ginger root, lemon, lime, honey, raw cane sugaregpple, herbs and spices. F's Original Ginger Brew is 20% fruit juic

e Reecs Extra Ginger Brews the same approximate recipe, with 26 gramsesffiginger root for a stronger bite. ReseHxtre
Ginger Brew is 20% fruit juice

e Reecls Premium Ginger Brevis sweetened only with honey and pineapple juieed® Premium Ginger Brew is 20% fr
juice and contains 17 grams of fresh ginger r

e Reecs Raspberry Ginger Breus brewed from 17 grams of fresh ginger root, raspbjuice and lime. Reesl’'Raspberi
Ginger Brew is 20% raspberry juic

e Ree(s Spiced Apple Brewses 8 grams of fresh ginger root, the finest@atman apple juice and such apple pie spic
cinnamon, cloves and allspice. R’s Spiced Apple Brew is 50% apple jui

e Ree(s Cherry Ginger Breuis naturally brewed from 17 grams of fresh gingeaty cherry juice from concentrate and spit

e Reecs Light 55 Calories Extra Ginger Breis a reduced calorie version of our top sellingd®Re&xtra Ginger Brew that w
made possible by using Stevia. We use the sampere€i26 grams of fresh ginger root, honey, pinegdpmon and lim
juices and exotic spice

e Reec(s Natural Energy Elixiris an energy drink infused with all natural ingests designed to provide consumers w
healthy and natural boost to energy ley

e Reecs Nausea Religs based on our Ginger Brews with added B vitamittth ginger and B vitamins have been studie
their effectiveness in combating naus

Virgil's Root Beer
Virgil's is a premium root beer. We use altural ingredients, including filtered water, wrdithed cane sugar, anise from Spain, licorice
France, bourbon vanilla from Madagascar, cinnammomfSri Lanka, clove from Indonesia, wintergreesnirChina, sweet birch and molas
from the southern United States, nutmeg from Ind@yeimento berry oil from Jamaica, balsam oihfrBeru and cassia oil from China.
collect these ingredients worldwide and gather thegether at the brewing and bottling facilitiese \Wbmbine these ingredients under ¢
specifications and finally heat-pasteurize VirgiReot Beer, to ensure quality. We sell Virgil's R&eer in three packaging styles: @é@nce
bottles in a four-pack, a special swing-lid styletpottle and a 5-liter self-tapping party kegemirgil's soda line is GMO free.
In addition to our Virgil's Root Beer, we also afféae following products under our Virgil’s brand:

e Virgil's Cream Sod:i

e Virgil's Orange Cream Soc

e Virgil's Black Cherry Cream Soc

e Virgil's Real Cola

e Virgil's Dr. Better

e Virgil's ZERO line, including Root Beer, Cream Soda, Raah, Dr. Better and Black Cherry Cream Soda. (Z&ERRO line
is naturally sweetened with Stevia), ¢

e Virgil's juice beverages, including Clementine, Peach lbexth@ and Pomegran:

6




Reecs Culture Club Kombucha

We introduced our Culture Club Kombucha in 2012n#aicha is a fermented tea that dates its origirk bhousands of years. Amc
consumers, kombucha is believed to have healingclahsing characteristics. Sweetened tea is intex to a “startertulture and lightl
fermented to produce an acetic drink. We makeitiest kombucha possible, using a combination ob@gland Yerba Mate teas. Initially,
produced four flavors, Goji Ginger, Hibiscus Ginggnapefruit, Lemon Ginger Raspberry and Cranbéhfg.introduced four additional flavc
in 2013.

Other Beverage Brands

We have other popular brands that currently hawédd distribution, including China Cola, Sonomaa8gper and Flying Cauldron Buttersco
Beer. We are continually developing new brandsmoducts.

Private Label Product

We design and manufacture drinks for private lahedtomers in our Los Angeles Brewery. We are egpiertflavor development and
matching existing products in the market. We dgvehe recipe and may design the label and/or tibelsiyle. We do not private label any
our own branded product recipes. Private label fauring is different than copacking, as we btiild products and purchase the ingredi
The customer is purchasing a finished productanmpacking service.

Our private label products have been primarily klrag juices, waters and teas. We develop the ssufor glass and ingredients. We ha
variety of packaging options, including swing-lidtttes, foil capsules and various label types.

New Product Development

We are always working on ideas and products toimoeatexpanding our Reed’s Ginger Brews, Virgil'squct line, Reed Ginger Ice Creat
and Reed’s Ginger Candy product lines and packagiylgs. Among the advantages of our sgiérated Brewery are the flexibility to
innovative packaging and the capability to experitneith new product flavors at less cost to ourratiens or capital.

Our private label products require continual pradievelopment. We are able to be nimble and inmeaproducing new products in a st
amount of time.

Manufacture of Our Products
We produce our carbonated beverages at two fasiliti

e afacility in Los Angeles, California, known as TBeewery, at which we currently produce kombuchetain soda products a
our private label products, al

e a packing, or co-pack, facility in Pennsylvaniaiethsupplies us with product we do not producelts Brewery. The cpacke
assembles our products and charges us a fee, tghgrthe case, for the products they prodt

We follow a “fill as neededtmanufacturing model to the best of our ability amelhave no significant backlog of orders. Substdigtall of the
raw materials used in the preparation, bottling packaging of our products are purchased by uy @ub contract packers in accordance
our specifications. Reed'’s Crystallized Ginger iad® to our specifications in Fiji. ResdGinger Candy Chews are made and packed !
specifications in Indonesia.

Generally, we obtain the ingredients used in oodpcts from domestic suppliers and each ingrediastseveral reliable suppliers. We hav
major supply contracts with any of our suppliers.a&general policy, we pick ingredients in the dgwment of our products that have mult
suppliers and are common ingredients. This providiesel of protection against a major supply cactsdn or calamity.

We believe that as we continue to grow, we willdide to keep up with increased production demantsbelieve that the Brewery has an
capacity to handle increased West Coast businestheTextent that any significant increase in bessnrequires us to supplement or subs
our current cgpackers, we believe that there are readily avalalternatives, so that there would not be a siant delay or interruption

fulfilling orders and delivery of our products. addition, we do not believe that growth will resitany significant difficulty or delay

obtaining raw materials, ingredients or finisheddarct that is repackaged at the Brewery.

Our Primary Markets
We target a niche in the estimated $60 billion oadied and nooarbonated soft drink markets in the US, Canadalatednational market

Our brands are generally regarded as premium andahawith upscale packaging and are loosely @efias the artisanal (craft), premi
bottled carbonated soft drink category.




The soft drink industry is highly fragmented ane ttraft soft drink category consists of such coitqet as, Henry Weinhards, Thon
Kemper, Hanses, 1zze, Boylans and Jones Soda, to hame a feveeTtirands have the advantage of being seen widdheinational mark
and being commonly known for years through vietided ad campaigns. Despite our products havirejagively high price for an artisai
premium beverage product, no mass media advertsidga relatively small but growing presence inrtfenstream market compared to m
of our competitors, we believe that results to digenonstrate that Reed’s Ginger Brews and Vegibdas are making strong inroads
market share gains against some of the larger briantie market.

Kombucha is the largest growth segment of the fanat beverage category of drinks and foods, inolgdoconut water, yogurt and fre
juices. Among this broader category, the refrigatgtiices and functional beverages segment greappyoximately $200 million in 2012 to
estimated market of approximately $600 million (5@¥6wth), according to SPINS data. Kombucha corepritie overwhelming major
share of this explosive growth and comprises mbgthe segment. It is generally believed that thgnsent will continue to expand at a str
rate over the next few years. Other functionalkim this category are also expanding sales dthyetes, primarily coconut water and fr
pressed juices. Consumer awareness and demanehfdiohal drinks is increasing and we feel that karha and other cultured drinks will
in the forefront of this expanding market category.

We sell the majority of our products in the natdoald store, mainstream supermarket chains andstwite locations, primarily in the Unit
States and, to a lesser degree, in Canada anddzurop

Natural Food Store

Our primary and historical marketing and distribatsource of our products has been natural foodyandnet stores throughout the US. Tt
stores include Whole Foods Market, Trader §p8prouts, Sunflowers, Earth Fare, and New Seagtsigo name a few. Our brands are
sold in gourmet restaurants and deliationwide. With the advent of large natural febore chains and specialty merchants, the naftooalk
segment continues to grow each year, helping hgeetbntinued growth of our brands.

Mainstream Supermarkets and Retail

We also sell our products to direct store delivdigtributors (DSD) who specialize in distributingdaselling our products directly
mainstream retail channels, natural foods, andiaipgcetail stores. Our brands are further solekclly to some retailers who require that
sell directly to their distribution centers sintey have developed their own logistics capabilitttseamples of chains that fall into the “direct’
category are retailers such as, Costco, Trades Jsame Whole Foods Market Regions and Kroger.

Supermarkets, particularly supermarket chains andchiment local/regional chains, often impose shgttfees in order to gain shelf prese
within their stores. These fees can be structurdakbtpaid ondime only or in installments. We utilize selectisietting in supermarket chal
throughout the US and to a lesser degree, in Cardalaever, our local and national sales team ha® lable to place our products with
having to pay significant slotting fees. Slottireg$ for new item placements on average have cgathane between $10 to $150 per store
new item.

Food Service Placeme

We also market our beverages to industrial catedgicorporate feeders), and to on premise barsemtaurants. As our business continue
mature, we intend to place our beverages in stagligport arenas, concert halls, theatres, and othierral centers as longrm marketing ar
pouring relationships are developed within thisibess segment.

International Sale:

We have developed a limited market for our produtiSanada, Europe and Asia. Sales outside of Namikrica currently represent less t
1% of our total sales. Sales in Canada representt db3% of our total sales. We believe that ttegeegood opportunities for expansion of s
in Canada and we are increasing our marketing fooukat market. Other international sales becoost grohibitive, except in specialty s¢
circumstances, since our premium sodas are packgidss, which involves substantial freight to moverseas. We are open to opportur
to export and to copack internationally and expauod brands into foreign markets, and we are holdireliminary discussions with tradi
companies and import/export companies for theilligion of our products throughout Asia, Europe &udith America. We believe that th
areas are a natural fit for Resdjinger products, because of the importance djegiin international markets, especially the Asiaarke
where ginger is a significant part of diet and itiatn.




Distribution, Sales and Marketir

We currently have a national network of mainstreaatural and specialty food distributors in the tddiStates and Canada. We sell direct
our distributors, who in turn sell to retail star#ge also use our own internal sales force andpeddent sales representatives to promot
products for our distributors and direct salesuo retail customers. One of the main goals of @lesand marketing efforts is to increase :
and grow our brands. Our sales force consists mibsasales representatives in five geographic regiacross the country. Additionally,
employ a staff of internal telemarketing sales espntatives. Generally, our sales managers arernsibje for all activities related to the sa
distribution and marketing of our brands to ourirentlistributor and retail partner network in Nor¥merica. We distribute our produ
primarily through several national natural foodstdibutors and an increasing number of regionalnstetam DSD distributors. We hi
entered into agreements with some of our distritsutbat commit us to “termination feeg"we terminate our agreements early or witl
cause. These agreements call for our customenmthe right to distribute our products to a dediygpe of retailer within a defined geogray
region. As is customary in the beverage indusfrwe should terminate the agreement or not aut@alitirenew the agreement, we woulc
obligated to make certain payments to our custonvéeshave no plans to terminate or not renew angeagent with any of our customers.
also offer our products and promotional merchandiszctly to consumers via the Internet through wabsite www.reedsgingerbrew.com.

Marketing to Distributors

We market to distributors using a number of marigstrategies, including direct solicitation, tebeketing, trade advertising and trade s
exhibition. These distributors include natural fogurmet food and mainstream distributors. Outrithistors sell our products directly
natural food, gourmet food and mainstream superetafior sale to the public. We maintain direct eshtvith our distributor partners throt
our in-house sales managers. From time to time and inlieited markets, when use of our own sales fosceoit cost effective, we will utili:
independent sales brokers and outside represezgativ

Marketing to Retail Store

The primary focus of our sales efforts is superraadales. We have a small highly trained salesftinat is directly contacting superma
chains and setting up promotional calendars. Irtiadd we market to retail stores by utilizing teaghows, trade advertising, telemarke
direct mail pieces and direct contact with the est@ur sales managers and representatives visi¢ ttedail stores to sell directly in m:
regions. Sales to retail stores are coordinatexuigir our distribution network and our regional Wemeses.

Competition

The beverage industry is highly competitive. Th@agpal areas of competition are pricing, packaguhgvelopment of new products and flay
and marketing campaigns. Our products compete avithide range of drinks produced by a relativelgéanumber of manufacturers. Mos
these brands have enjoyed broad, well-establisla¢idnal recognition for years, through wallhded ad and other branding campaign:
addition, the companies manufacturing these pradgenerally have greater financial, marketing amsridution resources than we
Important factors affecting our ability to competgccessfully include taste and flavor of produttsje and consumer promotions, rapid
effective development of new, unique cutting edgedpcts, attractive and different packaging, brangeoduct advertising and pricing.
also compete for distributors who will concentrate marketing our products over those of our comesti provide stable and relia
distribution and secure adequate shelf space il @ttlets. Competitive pressures in the soft iditategory could cause our products ti
unable to gain or to lose market share or we ceufierience price erosion. We believe that our iatige beverage recipes and packaging
use of premium ingredients and a trade secret heptiocess provide us with a competitive advangagethat our commitments to the higl
quality standards and brand innovation are keysitcsuccess.

The kombucha market is dominated by one producer selis their products nationally. The remaindethef producers is comprised of mo
fragmented regional or local companies. There arepanies that gain market share in certain regioowever, most do not have the scale
capability to effectively sell and distribute onnational basis. We believe that Reed now the #2 national producer of kombuche
accomplishment achieved in a relatively short pkied time, by leveraging our existing distributichannels and customer relationship
expand our sales volume quickly. We also haviednse production capabilities that can be scalealsupeeded to make this a primary bran
Reeds. We believe that our existing infrastructure twea competitive advantage, including productgiesnanufacturing & production an
network of sales & distribution.




Proprietary Rights

We own trademarks that we consider material tobmsiness. Three of our material trademarks aretergid trademarks in the U.S. Patent
Trademark Office: Virgil's ®, Reed’s Original Ging&rew All-Natural Jamaican Style Ginger Ale ® a@thina Cola ®.Registrations fc
trademarks in the United States will last indeéhitas long as we continue to use and police thdetnarks and renew filings with
applicable governmental offices. We have not béwdlenged in our right to use any of our materatiemarks in the United States. We in
to obtain international registration of certaindenarks in foreign jurisdictions.

In addition, we consider our finished product andaentrate formulae, which are not the subjechgfatents, to be trade secrets. Our bre
process is a trade secret. This process can betasgdw flavors of beverages other than gingeraalé ginger beer, such as root beer, ¢
soda, cola and other spice and fruit beveragesh¥lve not sought any patents on our brewing prosedsseause we would be require
disclose our brewing process in patent applications

We generally use non-disclosure agreements witH@mes and distributors to protect our proprietégits.
Government Regulation

The production, distribution and sale in the Unit@&ttes of many of our Compasyproducts are subject to the Federal Food, Drad
Cosmetic Act, the Federal Trade Commission ActLifuegham Act, state consumer protection laws, fddstate and local workplace health
safety laws, various federal, state and local emwrental protection laws and various other fedest@te and local statutes and regula
applicable to the production, transportation, saddety, advertising, labeling and ingredients wéhsproducts. Outside the United States
distribution and sale of our many products andteel@perations are also subject to numerous sirildrother statutes and regulations.

A California law requires that a specific warningpaar on any product that contains a componeetlisy the state as having been four
cause cancer or birth defects. The law exposdeall and beverage producers to the possibilityavirg to provide warnings on their produ
This is because the law recognizes no generallficaiye quantitative thresholds below which a wagnis not required. Consequently, €
trace amounts of listed components can exposeteffgaroducts to the prospect of warning labelsd&cts containing listed substances
occur naturally or that are contributed to suchdpiads solely by a municipal water supply are gdheexempt from the warning requireme
No Company beverages produced for sale in Caliéoane currently required to display warnings uniiés law. We are unable to prec
whether a component found in a Company product ntighadded to the California list in the futurehaligh the state has initiated a regule
process in which caffeine will be evaluated fotitig. Furthermore, we are also unable to predictmwbr whether the increasing sensitivit:
detection methodology that may become applicabtleuthis law and related regulations as they ctigrexxist, or as they may be amenc
might result in the detection of an infinitesimaiaaptity of a listed substance in a beverage of ptoduced for sale in California.

Bottlers of our beverage products presently offed ase nonrefillable, recyclable containers in tthéted States and various other mar
around the world. Some of these bottlers also @ffer use refillable containers, which are alsogkable. Legal requirements apply in vari
jurisdictions in the United States and overseasiriggy that deposits or certain ecotaxes or feeshagged for the sale, marketing and us
certain nonrefillable beverage containers. Theipeerequirements imposed by these measures vangr Bfpes of beverage contaimetatec
deposit, recycling, ecotax and/or product stewdpdstatutes and regulations also apply in variaussdlictions in the United States
overseas. We anticipate that additional, similgaleequirements may be proposed or enacted ifutbiee at local, state and federal levels,
in the United States and elsewhere.

All of our facilities and other operations in thaitéd States are subject to various environmentatkption statutes and regulations, inclus
those relating to the use of water resources amddthcharge of wastewater. Our policy is to compith all such legal requiremen
Compliance with these provisions has not had, arddw not expect such compliance to have, any nahtadverse effect on our cap
expenditures, net income or competitive position.

Environmental Matters

Our primary cost environmental compliance activityin recycling fees and redemption values. Weracgiired to collect redemption val
from our customers and remit those redemption waaehe state, based upon the number of bottlesrtdin products sold in that state.

Employees

We have 28 fulime employees on our corporate staff, as follo/sn general management, 16 in sales and markstipgort, and 9
accounting, administration and operations. We alsee 33 production employees that work both full aart time. We employ additiot
people on a patime basis as needed. We have never participatactaliective bargaining agreement. We believe tiatelationship with o
employees is good.
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Item 2. Property

We lease a facility of approximately 76,000 squaet, which serves as our principal executive effjcour West Coast Brewery and bott
plant and our Southern California warehouse fgcil{pproximately 30,000 square feet of the totapis leased under a lotegm leas
expiring in 2024. We also lease a warehouse ofceqimiately 18,000 square feet under a lease expinr&)17, a warehouse of approxima
13,000 square feet under a lease expiring in 281d a warehouse of 15,000 square feet on a montieidh basis.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are a party to claims andilggoceedings arising in the ordinary course dfifiess. Our management evaluates
exposure to these claims and proceedings indiviiaald in the aggregate and provides for poteftsdes on such litigation if the amoun
the loss is estimable and the loss is probable.

From August 3, 2005 through April 7, 2006, we ig56883,156 shares of our common stock in conneetitimour initial public offering. Thes
securities represented all of the shares issu@drmection with the initial public offering prioo tOctober 11, 2006. These shares issu
connection with the initial public offering may rebeen issued in violation of either Federal oteStecurities laws, or both, and may
subject to rescission.

On August 12, 2006, we made a rescission offelltbadders of the outstanding shares that we beliake subject to rescission, pursuai
which we offered to repurchase these shares thestamding from the holders. At the expiration of tlescission offer on September 18, 2
the rescission offer was accepted by 32 of theredfg to the extent of 28,420 shares for an aggrezfe$119,000, including statutory inter
The shares that were tendered for rescission werhased by third parties and not from our funds.

Federal securities laws do not provide that a ssgm offer will terminate a purchaseright to rescind a sale of stock that was noisteged a
required or was not otherwise exempt from suchstegfion requirements. With respect to the offexels rejected the rescission offer, we |
continue to be liable under federal and state g#&ssilaws for up to an amount equal to the valfi@lbshares of common stock issuet
connection with the initial public offering plusyastatutory interest we may be required to payt i§ determined that we offered securi
without properly registering them under federastate law, or securing an exemption from regisirgtiegulators could impose monetary f
or other sanctions as provided under these lawsveder, we believe the rescission offer providesnaith additional meritorious defens
against any future claims relating to these shares.

Except as set forth above, we believe that thezenar material litigation matters at the currentetirhlthough the results of such litigat
matters and claims cannot be predicted with cegtame believe that the final outcome of such ckimmd proceedings will not have a mat:
adverse impact on our financial position, liquidityresults of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stocklolder Matters
Our common stock is listed for trading on the NYMKT trading under the symbol “REEDRPRrior to December 31, 2012, our company tri

on the NASDAQ exchange. The following is a summafrthe high and low bid prices of our common stookthe NASDAQ and NYSE MK
Capital Markets for the periods presented:

Sales Price
High Low
Year Ending December 31, 2012
First Quartel $ 1.9C $ 1.1C
Second Quarte 4.4¢ 1.7¢C
Third Quartel 7.1¢ 3.2¢
Fourth Quarte 8.82 4.9
Sales Price
High Low
Year Ending December 31, 201
First Quartel $ 6.5C $ 3.8t
Second Quarte 5.4C 3.8(
Third Quartel 6.6t 4.6t
Fourth Quarte 8.1z2 5.0t

As of December 31, 2013, there were approximatél stockholders of record of the common stock {nduding the number of persons
entities holding stock in nominee or street nameugh various brokerage firms) and approximately22,832 outstanding shares of com
stock.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 saed the following equity securities that wereegiistered under the Securities Act:

e We issued 1,250 shares of common stock in exchiamgmnsulting services. The value of the stock Wwased on the closing price
the stock on the issuance or agreed upon datetotddevalue of shares issued for services was $5,00e shares were issued purs
to exemption from registration under Section 4{the Securities Act

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid dividends on oumeomstock. We currently intend to retain futurengags, if any, for use in our busine
and, therefore, we do not anticipate declaringaying any dividends in the foreseeable future. Raymof future dividends, if any, will be
the discretion of our board of directors after takinto account various factors, including the terofi our credit facility and our financ
condition, operating results, current and anti@datash needs and plans for expansion.

We are obligated to pay a nenmulative 5% dividend from lawfully available atséo the holders of our Series A preferred stawk $0.1.
per share per quarter on our Series B preferradk stoeither cash or additional shares of commouoksat our discretion. In 2013 and 2012,
paid dividends on our Series A preferred stocknraggregate of 1,064 and 4,760 shares of commak 8iceach such year, respectively
anticipate that we will be obligated to issue atstethis many shares annually to the holders ofS#ges A preferred stock so long as
shares are issued and outstanding. In 2013, wenuet accrued dividends on our outstanding SerigisaiBes and paid $74,000 of dividend
issuing 3,394 shares of our common stock. In 28&2accrued $29,000 of dividends on our outstan@iedes B shares and paid $37,00
dividends by issuing 47,890 shares of our commockst
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans
2001 Stock Option Plan and 2007 Stock Option Plan

We are authorized to issue options to purchase §0®,000 shares of common stock under our 200dkSdption Plan, and we are authori
to issue options to purchase up to 1,500,000 steresmmon stock under our 2007 Stock Option P@n.August 28, 2001, our board
directors adopted the 2001 Stock Option Plan, &edplan was approved by our stockholders. On Oct8pb2007, our board of direct
adopted the 2007 Stock Option Plan, and the planaparoved by our stockholders on November 19, 2007

The plans permit the grant of options to our emeésy directors and consultants. The options magtitote either “incentive stock options”
within the meaning of Section 422 of the InternalvBnue Code or “non-qualified stock options”. Thienary difference betweenricentive
stock options” and “non-qualified stock options'tligt once an option is exercised, the stock receiinder an “incentive stock optiohas th
potential of being taxed at the more favorable {arogn capital gains rate, while stock received kgreising a “non-qualified stock options
taxed according to the ordinary income tax rateedale.

The plans are currently administered by the bodirdirectors. The plan administrator has full angkfiauthority to select the individuals
receive options and to grant such options as veel avide degree of flexibility in determining therms and conditions of options, includ
vesting provisions.

The exercise price of an option granted under the pannot be less than 100% of the fair markatesger share of common stock on the
of the grant of the option. The exercise price wfircentive stock option granted to a person owmrage than 10% of the total combit
voting power of the common stock must be at le48PA of the fair market value per share of commaoglsbn the date of the grant. Opti
may not be granted under the plan on or after éh¢htanniversary of the adoption of the plan. Itgenstock options granted to a per
owning more than 10% of the combined voting powiehe common stock cannot be exercisable for muaa five years.

When an option is exercised, the purchase pridaefinderlying stock will be paid in cash, excdyatttthe plan administrator may permit
exercise price to be paid in any combination oh¢ahares of stock having a fair market value etpadhe exercise price, or as othen
determined by the plan administrator.

If an optionee ceases to be an employee, diremtaonsultant with us, other than by reason ofdedisability or retirement, all vested optis
must be exercised within three months following hswwvent. However, if an optionee'employment or consulting relationship with
terminates for cause, or if a director of ourseimoved for cause, all unexercised options will teate immediately. If an optionee ceases 1
an employee or director of, or a consultant tdays,eason of death, disability, or retirementyvatted options may be exercised within one
following such event or such shorter period agl®wise provided in the related agreement.

When a stock award expires or is terminated beafaseexercised, the shares set aside for thatcas returned to the pool of shares avai
for future awards.

No option can be granted under the plan after &ams/following the earlier of the date the plan wdspted by the board of directors or the
the plan was approved by our stockholders.

2010 Incentive Stock Plan and 2010-2 Incentive Sto®lan

We are authorized to issue up to an aggregate 00@5shares of common stock émployees, officers, directors, consultants, inddpe
contractors, advisors or other service provideiRaed’s under our 2010 Incentive Stock Plan and-20thcentive Stock Plan (collectively, 1
“2010 Plans”). The 2010 Incentive Stock Plan waspaed by our board of directors on March 31, 2Q18;20102 Incentive Stock Option Pl
was adopted on May 5, 2010. The 2010 Plans arengstaried by a committee of the board of directdfe plan committee may from time
time, and subject to the provisions of the plan anch other terms and conditions as the plan caenibay prescribe, grant to any elig
person one or more shares of common stock of Ré&agard Shares”).The grant of Award Shares or grant of the righteoeive Awar
Shares shall be evidenced by either a written donguagreement or a separate written agreemerftroong such grant, executed by Reed’
and the recipient, stating the number of Award 8sgranted and stating all terms and conditionsuch grant. During 2013, no share
common stock were issued under the 2010 Plansna2@il2 there were 14,965 shares of common stecedunder the 2010 Plans.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information, as of Retber 31, 2013, with respect to equity securitigh@ized for issuance under compens:
plans:

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to | Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Plans (excluding securiti
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights reflected in Column
Plan Categor (a) (b) (a))(c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 639,33: $ 3.1¢ 439,00:
Equity compensation plans not approved by sect
holders 101,96. $ 2.3C -
TOTAL 741,290 $ 3.0¢€ 439,00:

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

As a smaller reporting company, Reed’s is not neglio provide the information required by thigité.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should &ad in conjunction with our financi
statements and the related notes appearing elsewhetthis Annual Report. This discussion and anslysay contain forwardeoking
statements based on assumptions about our futwsiadss. Our actual results could differ materidigm those anticipated in these forward

looking statements as a result of certain factorsluding but not limited to those set forth undRisk Factors” and elsewhere in this Anni
Report.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth key statistics fhetyears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, resgecti

Year Endec
December 31 Pct.
2013 2012 Change
Gross sales, net of discounts & returns $ 4224200 $ 32,946,00 28%
Less: Promotional and other allowances (b) 4,961,001 2,939,001 69%
Net sales 37,281,00 30,007,00 24%
Cost of tangible goods sold ( 23,691,00 18,943,00 25%
As a percentage o
Gross sale: 56% 57%
Net sales 64 % 63%
Cost of goods sol- idle capacity (d 2,796,00! 1,920,001 46%
As a percentage of net sales 7% 6 %
Gross profit $ 10,794,00 $  9,144,00 18%
Gross profit margin as a percentage of net ¢ 29% 30%
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(a) Gross sales is used internally by managemerdramdicator of and to monitor operating perfornean including sales performance
particular products, salesperson performance, peidyrowth or declines and overall Company perforc@nThe use of gross sales all
evaluation of sales performance before the efféenyg promotional items, which can mask certainfgrenance issues. We therefore bel
that the presentation of gross sales provides duliseeasure of our operating performance. Grosgsas not a measure that is recogn
under GAAP and should not be considered as anradtere to net sales, which is determined in accoogawith GAAP, and should not be L
alone as an indicator of operating performance iage of net sales. Additionally, gross sales mal v comparable to similarly title
measures used by other companies, as gross sasebdmn defined by our internal reporting practicksaddition, gross sales may not
realized in the form of cash receipts as promotiggayments and allowances may be deducted from gratgmeceived from certain customers.

(b) Although the expenditures described in this liem are determined in accordance with GAAP ardtrtbAAP requirements, the disclos
thereof does not conform with GAAP presentatioruiregnents. Additionally, our definition of promatal and other allowances may not
comparable to similar items presented by other camgs. Promotional and other allowances primarihclude consideration given to 1
Company'’s distributors or retail customers incluglirbut not limited to the following: (i) reimbursents given to the Compasydistributor:
for agreed portions of their promotional spend wigailers, including slotting, shelf space alloveas and other fees for both new and exi:
products; (ii) the Compars agreed share of fees given to distributors andfiectly to retailers for instore marketing and promotior
activities; (iii) the Company agreed share of slotting, shelf space allowarmeesother fees given directly to retailers; (iviémtives given -
the Companyg distributors and/or retailers for achieving oraeding certain predetermined sales goals; andlisgounted or free produc
The presentation of promotional and other allowanéacilitates an evaluation of their impact on ttietermination of net sales and

spending levels incurred or correlated with suchesaPromotional and other allowances constitutenaterial portion of our marketir
activities. The Company’promotional allowance programs with its numerdalistributors and/or retailers are executed througbéparat
agreements in the ordinary course of business. & hgseements generally provide for one or morehefdrrangements described above
are of varying durations, ranging from one weelbohe year.

(c) Cost of tangible goods sold consists of theésco raw materials and packaging utilized in tharmafacture of products, goacking fee:
repacking fees, itbound freight charges, inventory adjustments, ak &gecertain internal transfer costs. Cost of térlg goods sold is us
internally by management to measure the directscostgoods sold, aside from unallocated plant caStsst of tangible goods sold is nc
measure that is recognized under GAAP and shoultheconsidered as an alternative to cost of gamdd, which is determined in accorda
with GAAP, and should not be used alone as an @&tdiof operating performance in place of cost 0bds sold.

(d) Cost of goods sold idle capacity consists of direct production costsekcess of charges allocated to our finished gandsoduction
Plant costs include labor costs, production supplieepairs and maintenance, and inventory v-off. Our charges for labor and overhe
allocated to our finished goods are determined amaxket cost basis, which is lower than our act@sts incurred. Plant costs in exces
production allocations are expensed in the periocurred rather than added to the cost of finishedds produced. Cost goods s+ idle
capacity is not a measure that is recognized ur@@AP and should not be considered as an alterndtiveost of goods sold, which
determined in accordance with GAAP, and shouldoeotised alone as an indicator of operating perfarogin place of cost of goods sold.

Year ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year ebdm@mber 31, 2012
Gross Sales

Gross sales of $42,242,000 for the year ended DaeeB1l, 2013 represented an increase of 28% frd0%8,000 in the prior year. Sales
growth was driven primarily by increased sales wf oranded products of approximately $6,260,00®58%6. Kombucha sales began in the
2012 third quarter and have increased to becommxipmately 10% of our total net revenues.

Promotional and other allowances

Promotions and allowances increased 69% to $4,061f6r the year ended December 31, 2013 from $20@89in the prior year. This
increase is primarily attributable to launching &@mbucha product line and incentives given to comsrs and retailers to increase market
share of our entire product line.

Net Sales
Sales of $37,281,000 for the year ended Decemhe2(B represented an increase $7,274,000, or 2d#b,$30,007,000 in the prior year.
Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists of the costs of raverrads and packaging utilized in the manufacturgroucts, cgacking fees, repacking fe
in-bound freight charges, inventory adjustments, db agecertain internal transfer costs. Cost of gosdld also consists of direct produc
costs in excess of charges allocated to our fidigf@ods in production. Plant costs include labats;oproduction supplies, and repairs
maintenance. Our charges for labor and overheadaéid to our finished goods are determined onr&ehaost basis, which is lower than
actual costs incurred. Plant costs in excess afuymtion allocations are expensed in the periodrieclrather than added to the cost of finis
goods produced.

Our cost of goods sold increased to $26,487,00Beryear ended December 31, 2013, an increasepobamately $5,624,000 or 27% frc
2012. The increase was primarily due to net revéncreases of 24%. Additionally, a otigre loss on a private label contract in the amani
$412,000 was recorded during the second fiscalteu
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Gross Profit

Our gross profit of $10,794,000 in the year endeddnber 31, 2013 represents an increase of $10H0M0 18% from 2012. As a percent
of sales, our gross profit decreased to 29% in 2&l8ompared to 30% in 2012. As discussed abovegross profit was negatively impac
by a loss of $412,000 on a private label contrbe gross profit percentage decrease is also imgdnt an increase in promotional disce
costs. Since such costs are a deduction from ghkegross margin percentage is negatively impauoyeidcreased promotional costs. We |
been granting substantial discounts on our komhuehave expand this product line into new distitiuthannels and customers, and we

also increased our promotional programs for othanded products. We believe that our promotionakstments are effective and

accelerating sales growth.

Delivery and Handling Expenses

Delivery and handling expenses consist of deliveogts to customers and warehouse costs incurrefiafodling our finished goods af
production. Delivery and handling costs increasgd5h% to $3,977,000 in the year ended December2813 compared to 2012. 1
$1,343,000 increase is primarily due to freighttdosreases of $1,176,000 and warehouse cost seseaf approximately $167,000. -
freight cost increases are primarily due to a higleetion of our branded products being manufactateour copacker in Pennsylvania for v
coast customers, requiring additional freight céstsdelivery. Also, we have offered delivered terto several new significant customers.
Warehouse cost increases are primarily due toaseet volume and the addition of several new calchge facilities for our kombucha.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses consist primarilgioéct charges for staff compensation costs, didugg, sales promotion, marketing i
trade shows. Selling and marketing costs increasedall to $4,180,000 (or 11.2% of net sales) ia year ended December 31, 2013 1
$3,145,000 (or 10.5% of net sales) in 2012. Th@3B,P00 increase is primarily due to increased @rsation and travel costs of $323,(
increased advertising costs of $288,000, increasekierage commissions of $160,000, and increasek stption expense of $109,000. !
sales staff increased to 18 members at Decemb@0338, from 15 at December 31, 2012.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist piiynefithe cost of executive, administrative, andafice personnel, as well as professi
fees. General and administrative expenses incre@s&3,506,000 (or 9.4% of net sales) during tharyended December 31, 2013 fi
$3,229,000 (or 10.8% of net sales) in 2012. Thigekse in spend rate indicates a trend in sperldatgs attributable to increased efficien

due to scale. Compensation costs increased by @@8professional, legal and consulting costs esed by $121,000, and stock op
expense increased by $109,000.

(Loss) Income from Operations

Loss from operations was $869,000 in the year erdecember 31, 2013, as compared to income of $086i® 2012. The decrease
primarily due to increased promotional spending iaedeased plant costs in excess of absorbed tosisgh production.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased to $651,000 in theeyekad December 31, 2013, compared to interest egpan$660,000 in the same perio
2012.

Modified EBITDA

The Company defines modified EBITDA (a non-GAAP si@&ment) as net loss before interest, taxes, dagien and amortization, and non-
cash sharéased compensation expense. Other companies maylatal modified EBITDA differently. Management lesles that tr
presentation of modified EBITDA provides a measafrperformance that approximates cash flow befoterést expense, and is meaningfi
investors.
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MODIFIED EBITDA SCHEDULE

Year ended December 31

2013 2012
(unaudited) (unaudited)

Net loss $ (1,520,000 $ (524,000
Modified EBITDA adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic 550,00( 738,00(
Interest expens 651,00( 660,00(
Stock option and warrant compensat 327,00( 107,00(
Other stock compensation for services and finaaeg 5,00( 23,00(

Total EBITDA adjustment 1,533,001 1,528,00!
Modified EBITDA income from operatior $ 13,00C $ 1,004,001

Liquidity and Capital Resource

As of December 31, 2013, we had stockholders eqfit$3,387,000 and we had working capital of $1,800, compared to stockhold
equity of $4,098,000 and working capital of $2,2@®) at December 31, 2012. The decrease in our ngdapital of $951,000 was primaril
result of net losses and pay downs on our long-tiebt.

Our decrease in cash and cash equivalents to $0(®4t December 31, 2013 compared to $1,163,00@ketmber 31, 2012, a decreas
$59,000, was primarily a result of cash used byratpey activities of $1,193,000, costs of plant imgements of $602,000, and princi
payments on debt of $385,000; which was offset arilpby net drawdown on our revolving line of citedf $1,501,000, an increased adve
on our term loan of $217,000, and proceeds froneiegcise of stock options and warrants of $403,000

Our Loan and Security Agreement with PMC Finan8atvices Group, LLC provides a $4.5 million revalyiline of credit and a $750,C
term loan. The revolving line of credit is based&%% of eligible accounts receivable and 50% dfikle inventory. The interest rate on
revolving line of credit is at the prime rate pRi1§5% (7% at December 31, 2013). The term loanri$750,000 and bears interest at the p
rate plus 11.6%, which shall not be below 14.85&eicured by all of the unencumbered assets @ahgpany, and is to be repaid in 48 e
installments of principal and interest of $21,000.

On September 20, 2013, the revolving line of credis increased to $4,800,000 and granted an anheance of $500,000, both for the
month period September 1, 2013 to February 28, 20b4February 28, 2014, the $4,800,000 and $500a8@8unts were extended to May
2014, after which the revolving line of credit wilé $4,500,000 and the ovadvance will be $200,000. The revolving line ofditenatures o
November 8, 2014. On May 1, 2013 the term loan nitgtdate was extended to April 20, 2017. At Decem®l, 2013, the balance of the t
loan was $647,000 .

The revolving line of credit agreement includesraricial covenant (debt service coverage ratid) ithaffective only if the credit availabili
under the revolving line of credit falls below $1000 and another financial covenant (capital experes) that the Company will not mé
capital expenditures in excess of $500,000 in #@&uaf year. At December 31, 2013, the credit abditg on the revolving line of credit fe
below $100,000 and, during 2013, the Company exgegtmdore than $500,000 for capital expenditures oAtingly, these two events cau
the Company to be in default under the loan agreémeDecember 31, 2013. These defaults were waimddarch 19, 2014.

We believe that the Company currently has the macgsvorking capital to support existing operatidmis at least the next 12 months. |
primary capital source will be positive cash flonwrh operations. If our sales goals do not mateegadis planned, we believe that the Com
can reduce its operating costs and can be managedintain positive cash flow from operations. Bliistally, we have financed our operati
primarily through private sales of common stoclefprred stock, convertible debt, a line of creditd a financial institution and cash gener
from operations.

We may not generate sufficient revenues from prbsgaies in the future to achieve profitable opersi If we are not able to achieve profit:
operations at some point in the future, we evehtumhy have insufficient working capital to maintaur operations as we presently inter
conduct them or to fund our expansion and markedimgj product development plans. In addition, ossdés may increase in the future a
expand our manufacturing capabilities and fundroarketing plans and product development. These$pssnong other things, have had
may continue to have an adverse effect on our wgrkapital, total assets and stockholderglity. If we are unable to achieve profitabilitiye
market value of our common stock would decline #radle would be a material adverse effect on oarfiial condition.

If we suffer losses from operations, our workingital may be insufficient to support our abilityeégpand our business operations as rapic
we would deem necessary at any time, unless waldeeo obtain additional financing. There can beassurance that we will be able to ok
such financing on acceptable terms, or at allddcuate funds are not available or are not availablacceptable terms, we may not be at
pursue our business objectives and would be redjtireeduce our level of operations, including i@dg infrastructure, promotions, persor
and other operating expenses. These events couddisadly affect our business, results of operate financial condition. If adequate ful
are not available or if they are not available amtemtable terms, our ability to fund the growth afr operations, take advantage
opportunities, develop products or services ormttse respond to competitive pressures could bafgigntly limited.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitteaccounting principles generally acceptedhe United States of America, or GA/
GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptian@ffect the reported amounts in our finandatesnents including various allowan
and reserves for accounts receivable and investdhie estimated lives of loriyed assets and trademarks and trademark liceasesgll a
claims and contingencies arising out of litigatmmother transactions that occur in the normal sewf business. The following summarize
most significant accounting and reporting polic@esl practices:

Revenue Recognitic. Revenue is recognized on the sale of a produenwhe risk of loss transfers to our customers, aikéction of th
receivable is reasonably assured, which generaltyirs when the product is shipped. A product is stopped without an order from 1
customer and credit acceptance procedures perforiedallowance for returns is regularly reviewed @djusted by management base
historical trends of returned items. Amounts pajdchstomers for shipping and handling costs arkidex in sales. The Company reimbu
its wholesalers and retailers for promotional disds, samples and certain advertising and promaittiactivities used in the promotion of
Companys products. The accounting treatment for the remsgments for samples and discounts to wholesadstgts in a reduction in the |
revenue line item. Reimbursements to wholesaledgatailers for certain advertising activities areluded in selling and marketing expenses.

Cost of Tangible Goods SoldCost of tangible goods sold consists of the costaw materials utilized in the manufacture obdhucts, co-
packing fees, repacking fees,bound freight charges, as well as certain intetmaasfer costs. Raw materials account for the Ergertion o
the cost of sales. Raw materials include cansldsptbther containers, ingredients and packagingniads.

Cost of goods sold — Idle CapacityCost of goods sold idle capacity consists of direct production costekcess of charges allocater
finished goods. Our charges for labor and overtaldated to our finished goods are determined @ost basis. Plant costs include [e
costs, production supplies, and repairs and maanie: Plant costs in excess of production allocataye expensed in the period incurred.

Long-Lived Assets Management assesses the carrying value of propedyequipment whenever events or changes in citamess indica
that the carrying value may not be recoverabldhéfe is indication of impairment, management prepan estimate of future cash flc
expected to result from the use of the asset andvientual disposition. If these cash flows are than the carrying amount of the asse
impairment loss is recognized to write down theeass its estimated fair value. For the years eridecember 31, 2013 and 2012, the Com|
did not recognize any impairments for its propeny equipment.

Intangible assets are comprised of indefitiited brand names acquired and have been assigned&finite life as we currently anticipate t
these brand names will contribute cash flows toGoepany perpetually. These indefiniteed intangible assets are not amortized, bu
assessed for impairment annually and evaluatedadlgria determine whether the indefinite usefus i§ appropriate. As part of our impairrr
test, we first assess qualitative factors to detemvhether it is more likely than not that theefiditedived intangible asset is impaired
further testing is necessary, we compare the etonair value of our indefinitbved intangible asset with its book value. If tbarrying
amount of the indefinitéived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, atemhined by its discounted cash flows, an impaitiess i
recognized in an amount equal to that excess.leoye¢ars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the &@gynaid not recognize any impairm
charges for its indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Management believes that the accounting estimdsgete to impairment of our long lived assets, idahg our trademark license ¢
trademarks, is a “critical accounting estimategcause: (1) it is highly susceptible to changenfrperiod to period because it requ
management to estimate fair value, which is basedssumptions about cash flows and discount ratesy2) the impact that recognizing
impairment would have on the assets reported orbalance sheet, as well as net income, could berraktManagement’ assumptions abc
cash flows and discount rates require significadgment because actual revenues and expensesliatuated in the past and we expect
will continue to do so.

In estimating future revenues, we use internal btgldnternal budgets are developed based on remestiue data for existing product lines
planned timing of future introductions of new pratiiand their impact on our future cash flows.

Accounts Receivab. We evaluate the collectability of our trade acusueceivable based on a number of factors. bugistances where
become aware of a specific customsdriability to meet its financial obligations to, @sspecific reserve for bad debts is estimatedraoarde:
which reduces the recognized receivable to thenastid amount our management believes will ultinydbel collected. In addition to spec
customer identification of potential bad debts, dadt charges are recorded based on our histéogsgs and an overall assessment of pa:
trade accounts receivable outstanding.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost twipase and/or manufacture the inventory or theeatirestimated market value of
inventory. We regularly review our inventory quéie on hand and record a provision for excessotisdlete inventory based primarily on
estimated forecast of product demand and/or ouityatd sell the product(s) concerned and productiequirements. Demand for our prodi
can fluctuate significantly. Factors that couldeaffdemand for our products include unanticipateahges in consumer preferences, ge
market conditions or other factors, which may resutancellations of advance orders or a redudticghe rate of reorders placed by custon
Additionally, our managemerst’estimates of future product demand may be inateuwhich could result in an understated or oagze
provision required for excess and obsolete inventor
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Stock-Based Compensatidrhe Company periodically issues stock options aadamts to employees and non-employees inaapmital raisin
transactions for services and for financing costee Company accounts for stock option and warraautg issued and vesting to employ
based on the authoritative guidance provided byFthancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) whetth& value of the award is meast
on the date of grant and recognized over the \@gt@riod. The Company accounts for stock optionwadant grants issued and vestin
non-employees in accordance with the authoritative gjuig of the FASB whereas the value of the stockpemsation is based upon
measurement date as determined at either a) tieeatiathich a performance commitment is reachedb) @t the date at which the neces
performance to earn the equity instruments is cetapINon-employee stodiased compensation charges generally are amonized the
vesting period on a straight-line basis. In certainumstances where there are no future performeggquirements by the n@amployee, optia
grants are immediately vested and the total stasdeth compensation charge is recorded in the pefithe measurement date.

The fair value of the Company’s stock option andresat grants are estimated using the Black-Schidieten Option Pricing model, whi
uses certain assumptions related to fisk- interest rates, expected volatility, expediésl of the stock options or warrants, and fu
dividends. Compensation expense is recorded bgsen the value derived from the Bla8icholes Option Pricing model, and based on &
experience. The assumptions used in the Black-8siMerton Option Pricing model could materially affecmpensation expense recorde
future periods.

We believe there have been no significant changesng the year ended December 31, 2013, to tmasitdisclosed as critical accouni
policies and estimates in Management's DiscussimhAnalysis of Financial Condition and Results qfe@ations in the Compars/Annua
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRB12.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Upda$t)) 201304. This update clarifit
how entities measure obligations resulting froomj@nd several liability arrangements for which tb&al amount of the obligation is fixed
the reporting date. This guidance is effectiveffecal years beginning after December 15, 2013iatatim reporting periods thereafter. T
update is not expected to have an impact on thep@oy’s financial position or results of operations

In April 2013, the FASB issued ASU 20103-to clarify when it is appropriate to apply thguidation basis of accounting. Additionally,
update provides guidance for recognition and measent of assets and liabilities and requirementsiiancial statements prepared using
liquidation basis of accounting. Under the amendiemtities are required to prepare their finanstatements under the liquidation basi
accounting when a liquidation becomes imminentsTguidance is effective for annual reporting pesibeéginning after December 15, 2(
and interim reporting periods thereafter. This upda not expected to have an impact on the Comipafityancial position or results
operations.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-which provides guidance relating to the finahstatement presentation of unrecognizec
benefits. The update provides that a liability tedeto an unrecognized tax benefit would be preskas a reduction of a deferred tax asset
net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lossa tax credit carryforward, if such settlementréquired or expected in the event
uncertain tax position is disallowed. This updatesinot require any new recurring disclosures amdfective for public entities for fiscal ye
beginning after December 15, 2013, and interim mé&mp periods thereafter. This update is not exged¢d have an impact on the Company’
financial position or results of operations.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued dy&SB, including its Emerging Issues Task Forbe, American Institute of Certifit
Public Accountants, and the Securities and Exch&wamission did not or are not believed by managgrtehave a material impact on
Company’s present or future consolidated finarstialements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

As a smaller reporting company, Reed'’s is not neglio provide the information required by thigit&A.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Reed'’s, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance she®eeds, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, andefated statements of operatic
changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flowstlier years then ended. These financial statemeattha responsibility of the Company’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to havewere we engaged to perform, an audit of iterimal control over financial reportir
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate ir
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsairyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audiiudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in
financial statements, assessing the accountingiples used and significant estimates made by nenagt, as well as evaluating the owve
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly in all material respectg fimancial position of Rees, Inc. as ¢
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results adpésations and its cash flows for the years thesednin conformity with accountil
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

/s/ Weinberg & Company, P.

Los Angeles, Californii
March 25, 201
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REED’S, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash
Inventory
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance fobtfalaccounts and returns anc
discounts of $324,000 and $399,000, respecti
Prepaid inventor
Prepaid and other current assets

Total Current Asset

Property and equipment, net of accumulated degresiaf $2,796,000 and
$2,351,000, respective

Brand name

Deferred financing fees, net of amortization of 00 and $26,000, respectively

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Dividends payabli

Line of credit

Current portion of long term financing obligati

Current portion of capital leases paya

Current portion of term loan

Total current liabilities

Long term financing obligation, less current pamtioet of discount of $526,000 an
$576,000, respective
Capital leases payable, less current pol
Term loan, less current portion
Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder' equity:
Series A Convertible Preferred stock, $10 par va08,000 shares authorized,
9,411 and 10,411 shares issued and outstandiqpataeely
Series B Convertible Preferred stock, $10 par v&808,000 shares authorized, r
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2868)2 shares issued and
outstanding, at December 31, 2(
Common stock, $.0001 par value, 19,500,000 shatherdzed, 12,922,832 and
12,084,673 shares issued and outstanding, respksc
Additional paid in capita
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

$ 1,104,000 $ 1,163,00
6,293,001 5,794,001

2,143,001 1,961,001

256,00( 201,00¢

178,00( 212,00!

9,974,001 9,331,00!

3,686,001 3,422,001

1,029,001 1,029,00

60,00( 54,00(

$ 14,749,000 $ 13,836,00
$ 3,612,000 $ 3,368,00!
136,00( 233,00(

- 74,00(

4,524,001 3,023,001

111,00( 90,00(

79,00( 69,00(

165,00( 176,00!

8,627,001 7,033,001

2,147,001 2,208,001

106,00( 98,00(

482,00( 399,00(

11,362,00 9,738,00!

94,00( 104,00(

= 456,00(

1,00( 1,00(

25,276,00 23,996,00
(21,984,00) (20,459,00)

3,387,001 4,098,001

$ 14,749,00 $ 13,836,00

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfieancial statements
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REED'’S, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Sales, ne $ 37,281,00 30,007,00
Cost of goods sold 26,487,000 20,863,00
Gross profit 10,794,00 9,144,00!
Operating expense
Delivery and handling expens 3,977,001 2,634,00!
Selling and marketing expens 4,180,001 3,145,001
General and administrative expenses 3,506,001 3,229,001
Total operating expenses 11,663,00 9,008,001
Income (loss) from operatiol (869,000 136,00(
Interest expense (651,000 (660,000
Net loss (1,520,001 (524,000
Preferred stock dividend (5,000) (45,000
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (1,525,001 (569,000
Loss per share attributable to common stockholdbesic and diluted $ (0.12) (0.05)
Weighted average number of shares outstandingc aad diluted 12,541,07. 11,361,05

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfieancial statements
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REED'’S,

INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Balance, January 1, 20

Fair Value of Common Stock issued for bonuses aendcees
Common stock issued upon conversion of Series fepeal
stock

Common stock issued upon conversion of Series ez
stock

Exercise of stock optior

Exercise of warrant

Fair value vesting of options issued to employ

Series A and Series B preferred stock divid

Common stock paid for Series A and Series B diuic

Net Loss

Balance, December 31, 20

Fair Value of common stock issued for servi

Common stock issued upon conversion of Series fepeal
stock

Common stock issued upon conversion of Series #1esl
stock

Exercise of stock optior

Exercise of warrant

Fair value vesting of options issued to employ

Series A preferred stock divide

Common stock paid for Series A Series B divid

Net Loss

Balance, December 31, 2013

Series A Series E Additional Total
Common Stocl Preferred Stoc Preferred Stoc Paid-In  Accumulater Stockholders’

Shares  Amouni Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Equity
10,885,83 $ 1,000 46,62: $ 466,000 80,41 $804,00( $22,924,00 $(19,890,00) $ 4,305,00!
14,96¢ - - - - - 23,00( - 23,00(
144,84( - (36,21() (362,000 - - 362,00( - -
243,69 - - - (34,81Y) (348,001 348,00( - -
347,22 - - - - - 30,00( - 30,00(
416,04t - - - - - 147,00( - 147,00(
- - - - - - 107,00( - 107,00(
i ; . - . - 5 (45,000) (45,000
32,07: - - - - - 55,00( - 55,00(
(524,00() (524,00()
12,084,67 1,00C 10,41 104,000 45,60: 456,00( 23,996,00 (20,459,00) 4,098,001
1,25(C - - - - - 5,00( - 5,00(
4,00( - (1,000 (10,000 - - 10,00( - -
319,21« - - - (45,607 (456,001 456,00( - -
276,10t - - - - - 30,00( - 30,00(
188,63! - - - - - 373,00( - 373,00(
- - - - - - 327,00( - 327,00(
1,06¢ - - - - - 5,00( (5,000 -
47,89( - - - - - 74,00( - 74,00(
- - - - - - (1,520,000 (1,520,001
12,922,83 $ 1,000 9,411 $ 94,00( -3 - $25,276,00 $(21,984,00) $ 3,387,00!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements
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REED’S, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (irsggrovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Fair value vesting of stock options issued to elypbs
Fair value of common stock issued for servi
(Decrease) increase in allowance for doubtful ants
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and inventory and other currepts
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from stock option and warrant exerc
Payments for deferred financing fe
Increased borrowings on note pays
Principal repayments on note paya
Principal repayments on long term financing obliga
Principal repayments on capital lease obliga
Net borrowings (repayments) on existing line ofditre
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in ci
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest
Taxes
Non Cash Investing and Financing Activities
Series A preferred stock converted to common s
Series B preferred stock converted to common ¢
Common Stock issued in settlement of Series A atSB preferre
Series B preferred stock dividend payable in comstonk
Property and equipment acquired through capitaldedligatior

2013 2012
$ (1,520,00) $ (524,000
550,00 738,00

327,00 107,00

5,00( 23,00(

(75,000) 264,00

(107,00() (599,001

(499,00() 305,00

(21,000) (122,000

244,00 1,058,001

(97,000 (73,000

(1,193,00)) 1,177,001

(602,00() (507,000

(602,000 (507,000

403,00 177,00(

(61,000) (44,000)

217,00 -

(145,00() (153,000

(90,000) (71,000)

(89,000) (57,000)

1,501,001 (72,000)

1,736,00! (220,001

(59,000) 450,00

1,163,001 713,00

$ 1,104,000 $ 1,163,00!
$ 712,000 $ 668,00
$ - % -
$ 10,000 $ 362,00
$ 456,000 $ 348,00
$ 5000 $ 55,00(
$ 74000 $ 74,00
$ 107,000  $ 15,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements
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REED’S, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

(1) Operations and Summary of Significant Accountig Policies
A) Nature of Operations

Reed’s, Inc. (the “Companytyas organized under the laws of the state of RoidJanuary 1991. In 2001, the Company changeswiais
from Original Beverage Corporation to Regdinc. and changed its state of incorporation ffdorida to Delaware. The Company is engs
primarily in the business of developing, manufaciyirand marketing natural naieoholic beverages, as well as candies and iG@FeW!
currently manufacture, market and sell seven unpoduct lines:

e Ree(s Ginger Brews

e Virgil's Root Beer, Cream Sodas, Dr. Better and Real @alaiding ZERO diet soda

e Culture Club Kombuche

e China Colas

e Ree(s Ginger Chews

e Ree(s Ginger Ice Cream

e Sonoma Sparkler Sparkling Juic

The Company sells its products primarily in natui@d stores, supermarket chains, and upscale gdustores in the United States
Canada.

B) Use of Estimate:

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftsssd liabilities and disclosures of contingesstess and liabilities at the date of the finar
statements and the reported amounts of revenuegx@uhses during the reporting period. Actual testbuld differ from those estimat
Those estimates and assumptions include estimat@sderves of uncollectible accounts, inventorgaddiscence, depreciable lives of prog
and equipment, analysis of impairments of recoraedngibles, accruals for potential liabilities aadsumptions made in valuing st
instruments issued for services.

C) Accounts Receivabl

The Company evaluates the collectability of itsl&raccounts receivable based on a number of fadtorcumstances where the Comp
becomes aware of a specific custoraénability to meet its financial obligations tcetiCompany, a specific reserve for bad debts isnastk
and recorded, which reduces the recognized redeitalthe estimated amount the Company believdsultiinately be collected. In addition
specific customer identification of potential baebts, bad debt charges are recorded based on thpadygs historical losses and an ove
assessment of past due trade accounts receivatamding.

The allowance for doubtful accounts and returns@isdounts is established through a provision reduthe carrying value of receivables.
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the allowance for dwlubtcounts and returns and discounts was appaieiyn $324,000 and $399,0
respectively.

D) Property and Equipment and Related Depreciati
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Expemeditéor major renewals and improvements that extbeduseful lives of property a

equipment or increase production capacity are abged, and expenditures for repairs and maintemame charged to expense as incu
Depreciation is calculated using accelerated amadb$it-line methods over the estimated useful liviethe assets as follows:

Property and Equipment Ty Years of Depreciatio
Building 39 years
Machinery and equipme 5-12 years
Vehicles 5 years

Office equipmen 5-7 years
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Management assess the carrying value of propedyegnipment whenever events or changes in circutossaindicate that the carrying ve
may not be recoverable. If there is indicationropairment, management prepares an estimate okfeagh flows expected to result from
use of the asset and its eventual dispositiomes$é cash flows are less than the carrying amduheasset, an impairment loss is recogniz
write down the asset to its estimated fair valuer the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012Cdnepany did not recognize &
impairments for its property and equipment.

E) Intangible Assets and Impairment Polic

Intangible assets are comprised of indefitiited brand names acquired and have been assigniediefinite life as we currently anticipate t
these brand names will contribute cash flows toGepany perpetually. These indefiniteed intangible assets are not amortized, bu
assessed for impairment annually and evaluatedadlgria determine whether the indefinite usefus i§ appropriate. As part of our impairrr
test, we first assess qualitative factors to detemvhether it is more likely than not that theefiditedived intangible asset is impaired
further testing is necessary, we compare the ettonair value of our indefinithved intangible asset with its book value. If tharrying
amount of the indefinitéived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, ateminined by its discounted cash flows, an impamtiess i
recognized in an amount equal to that excess.leoye¢ars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the &@ynaid not recognize any impairm
charges for its indefinite-lived intangible assets.

F) Concentrations

The Companys cash balances on deposit with banks are guachhiethe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporationouf260,000 at Decemt
31, 2013. The Company may be exposed to risk mathounts of funds held in bank accounts in exok#®e insurance limit. In assessing
risk, the Companyg policy is to maintain cash balances with highliuéinancial institutions. The Company had caglidnces in excess of 1
guarantee during the years ended December 31,&012012.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Compad two customers who accounted for approximad@¥ and 10% of its sali
respectively; and during the year ended Decembg2@12, the Company had two customers who accodategpproximately 30% and 10%
its sales, respectively. No other customer accaufde more than 10% of sales in either year. ADetember 31, 2013 the Company
accounts receivable due from two customers who cseg $571,000 (23%) and $424,000 (17%) of itsl tat@ounts receivable; and as
December 31, 2012 the Company had accounts redeidhie from two customers who comprised $580,0@%(2and $340,000 (149
respectively, of its total accounts receivable.

The Company currently relies on a single contraatkpr for a majority of its production and bottlinfbeverage products. The Company
different packers available for their productionppbducts. Although there are other packers andCthrapany has outfitted their own brew
and bottling plant, a change in packers may cauksay in the production process, which could wtiely affect operating results.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20&2Company had one vendor which accounted foroxppately 29% and 24¢
respectively of all purchases. At December 31, 2848 2012, the Company had accounts payable daevémdor who comprised 21%
27% of its total accounts payable, respectively.difter account was in excess of 10% of the balaheecounts payable as of Decembe
2013 and December 31, 2012.

G) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company uses various inputs in determiningdahievalue of its investments and measures thesetasn a recurring basis. Financial a
recorded at fair value in the balance sheets degjoazed by the level of objectivity associatedhwthe inputs used to measure their fair vi
Authoritative guidance provided by the FASB defirtke following levels directly related to the amouf subjectivity associated with 1
inputs to fair valuation of these financial assets:

Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for idegdtmssets or liabilities.
Level 2—Inputs, other than the quoted prices iivaaharkets, that are observable either directlindirectly.
Level 3—Unobservable inputs based on the Compasssmptions.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and sl such as cash and cash equivalents, accmadi/able, shorterm bank loans, accou
payable, notes payable and other payables, appatitheir fair values because of the short matwritthese instruments. The carrying va
of longterm loans approximate their fair values due toftet that the interest rates on these loans awet mach year based on preva
market interest rates.

H) Cost of sales

Cost of goods sold is comprised of the costs of meaterials and packaging utilized in the manufactfrproducts, cgacking fees, repacki
fees, inbound freight charges, as well as certain intetraadsfer costs. Additionally, cost of goods solahgists of direct production costs
excess of charges allocated to finished goodsadyution. Plant costs include labor costs, productupplies, repairs and maintenance,
inventory writeoff. Charges for labor and overhead allocatedrtisified goods are determined on a market cost vasish may be lower thi
the actual costs incurred. Plant costs in excegzaduction allocations are expensed in the peirnodrred rather than added to the cos
finished goods produced. Expenses not relatedetprhduction of our products are classified as apey expenses.
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I) Delivery and Handling Expense

Shipping and handling costs are comprised of pwioklaand receiving costs, inspection costs, warghgucosts, transfer freight costs,
other costs associated with product distributidarahanufacture and are included as part of opey&xpenses.

J) Income Taxes

The Company uses an asset and liability approacHiriancial accounting and reporting for income @sxthat allows recognition a
measurement of deferred tax assets based upoikehirdod of realization of tax benefits in futuyears. Under the asset and liability appra
deferred taxes are provided for the net tax effett®mporary differences between the carrying amtowof assets and liabilities for finant
reporting purposes and the amounts used for indameurposes. A valuation allowance is provideddeferred tax assets if it is more lik
than not these items will either expire before @@mpany is able to realize their benefits, or thatire deductibility is uncertain. T
Company’s policy is to recognize interest and/argiiées related to income tax matters in incomeetepense.

K) Revenue Recognitio

Revenue is recognized on the sale of a product wimemisk of loss transfers to our customers, asitbction of the receivable is reasonz
assured, which generally occurs when the produshifgped. A product is not shipped without an offdem the customer and credit accept:
procedures performed. The allowance for returmegslarly reviewed and adjusted by management baisdustorical trends of returned itel
Amounts paid by customers for shipping and handiiogts are included in sales.

The Company accounts for certain sales incentiwesustomers, including slotting fees, as a reduaatif gross sales. These sales incentive
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 apmtedr$3,804,000 and $2,345,000, respectively.

L) Net Loss Per Shar

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed bydidigithe net income (loss) applicable to Commorci8tolders by the weighted aver:
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding duhiag/ear. Diluted earnings (loss) per share ispded by dividing the net income (lo
applicable to Common Stockholders by the weighteztage number of common shares outstanding plusidheber of additional comm
shares that would have been outstanding if alltisdupotential common shares had been issued, ubindreasury stock method. Poter
common shares are excluded from the computatitheif effect is antidilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012athelations of basic and diluted loss per shagetlae same because potential dilt
securities would have an anti-dilutive effect. Huentially dilutive securities consisted of théddwing as of:

December 31

2013 2012
Warrants 101,96 317,25:
Series A Preferred Stoc 37,64« 41,64«
Series B Preferred Sto - 319,21
Options 639,33: 607,00(
Total 778,94: 1,285,11.

M) Advertising Cost:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andnaheded in selling expense in the amount of $1@0,and $111,000, for the years er
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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N) Stock Compensation Expent

The Company periodically issues stock options aadamts to employees and non-employees inagapital raising transactions for servi
and for financing costs. The Company accounts timcksoption and warrant grants issued and vestingniployees based on the authorite
guidance provided by the Financial Accounting Stadd Board (FASB) whereas the value of the awarddasured on the date of grant
recognized over the vesting period. The Companywus for stock option and warrant grants issued aesting to noremployees i
accordance with the authoritative guidance of tA&B whereas the value of the stock compensatidras®d upon the measurement da
determined at either a) the date at which a peioga commitment is reached, or b) at the date mttmthe necessary performance to ear:
equity instruments is complete. Non-employee stoaged compensation charges generally are amodizdhe vesting period on a straight
line basis. In certain circumstances where theeenar future performance requirements by the eimployee, option grants are immedia
vested and the total stock-based compensation eligrgcorded in the period of the measurement date

The fair value of the Company’s stock option andresat grants are estimated using the Black-Schidiegen Option Pricing model, whi
uses certain assumptions related to fisk- interest rates, expected volatility, expediézl of the stock options or warrants, and fu
dividends. Compensation expense is recorded bgsen the value derived from the Bla8icholes Option Pricing model, and based on &
experience. The assumptions used in the Black-8siMérton Option Pricing model could materially affecmpensation expense recorde
future periods.

0O) Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Updaft)) 201304. This update clarifit
how entities measure obligations resulting froomf@nd several liability arrangements for which tb&al amount of the obligation is fixed
the reporting date. This guidance is effectiveffecal years beginning after December 15, 2013iatatim reporting periods thereafter. T
update is not expected to have an impact on thep@oy’s financial position or results of operations

In April 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2003-to clarify when it is appropriate to apply thguidation basis of accounting. Additionally,
update provides guidance for recognition and messent of assets and liabilities and requirementsifiancial statements prepared using
liquidation basis of accounting. Under the amendimentities are required to prepare their finanstaktements under the liquidation basi
accounting when a liquidation becomes imminentsTguidance is effective for annual reporting pesibeéginning after December 15, 2(
and interim reporting periods thereafter. This upda not expected to have an impact on the Comnipafityancial position or results
operations.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-which provides guidance relating to the finahstatement presentation of unrecognizec
benefits. The update provides that a liability tredeto an unrecognized tax benefit would be preskas a reduction of a deferred tax asset
net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax lessa tax credit carryforward, if such settlementréquired or expected in the event
uncertain tax position is disallowed. This updatesinot require any new recurring disclosures swdféctive for public entities for fiscal ye
beginning after December 15, 2013, and interim mé&mgp periods thereafter. This update is not exged¢d have an impact on the Company’
financial position or results of operations.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued dY¥ASEB, including its Emerging Issues Task Forbe, American Institute of Certifit
Public Accountants, and the Securities and Exch&waamission did not or are not believed by managgrtehave a material impact on
Company’s present or future consolidated finarstialements.

(2) Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-finst-out) or market, and is comprised of theduling as of:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Raw Materials and Packagi $ 3,118,000 $ 3,524,00!
Finished Good 3,175,00! 2,270,001
$ 6,293,000 $ 5,794,001
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(3) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is comprised of the follgnas of:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Land $ 1,108,000 $ 1,108,00
Building 1,829,001 1,737,001
Vehicles 338,00( 320,00(
Machinery and equipme 2,763,00! 2,174,001
Office equipmen 444,001 434,00(
6,482,00! 5,773,001

Accumulated depreciatic (2,796,001 (2,351,00)
$ 3,686,000 $ 3,422,001

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenih@03.3 and 2012 was $445,000 and $612,000, resplgct

Machinery and equipment at December 31, 2013 af@ #ludes equipment held under capital leaségtdb,000 and $309,000, respecti
(see Note 8). Accumulated depreciation on equipnhetd under leases was $231,000 and $149,000 &eagmber 31, 2013 and 20
respectively.

(4) Intangible Assets

Brand Names

Brand names consist of the following three tradémm&or natural beverage as of December 31, 20126amd:

Virgil’s $ 576,00(
China Cole 224,00(
Sonoma Sparkle 229,00(

$ 1,029,00!

Virgil' s, China Cola, and Sonoma Sparkler brand nameslemed to have indefinite lives and are not anextibut are reviewed 1
impairment annually. For the years ended Decemher2813 and 2012, the Company did not recognize immpairment charges for
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Deferred Financing Fee:

Deferred financing fees are comprised of the foifmpas of:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Loan fees relating to financir $ 100,00 $ 80,00(
Accumulated amortization (40,000 (26,000
$ 60,000 $ 54,00(

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembge2@®L3 and 2012 was approximately $55,000 andd®0Fespectively.

Amortization of deferred financing fees is as falfofor the years ending December 31:

Year Amount

2014 54,00(
2015 3,00(¢
2016 3,00(
Total $ 60,00(

(5) Line of Credit

On November 9, 2011, the Company entered into anlavad Security Agreement with PMC Financial ServiGoup, LLC (PMC) whic
provides a $4,500,000 revolving line of credit @an#750,000 term loan (see Note 7). On Septembe2@(®B, the line of credit was increase
$4,800,000 effective September 1, 2013 to May 8142after which it will be $4,500,000. At Decemi2dr, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
aggregate amount outstanding under the line ofitoneds $4,524,000 and $3,023,000 respectively.lifleeof credit is based on 85% of eligi
accounts receivable and 50% of eligible inventerpires on November 7, 2014, and is secured bytanfiely all of the Companyg’ asset
The interest rate is at the prime rate plus 3.78% at December 31, 2013). There is an early tettioimdee of 1% of the maximum revol
amount during 2014. Also on September 20, 2013,Gbmpany was granted an owalvance on its revolving line of credit calculatiof
$500,000 effective September 1, 2013 to May 31428fter which it will be $200,00(



The revolving line of credit agreement includesreatficial covenant debt service coverage ratio ihaffective only if the credit availabili
under the revolving line of credit falls below $1000 and a financial covenant that the Company watl make capital expenditures in ex
of $500,000 in any fiscal year. At December 31,20he credit availability under the revolving linécredit was below $100,000, and du
2013 the Company expended more than $500,000 fotat@xpenditures. Accordingly at December 31,20he Company was in defe

under the loan agreement with PMC. The defaulteweived by PMC on March 19, 2014. This revolviimg lof credit matures on Novem
8, 2014.
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(6) Long Term Financing Obligation
Long term financing obligation is comprised of foowing as of:

December 31

2013 2012
Financing obligatior $ 2,784,000 $ 2,874,00i
Valuation discount (526,000 (576,000
2,258,001 2,298,00!
Less current portion (111,000 (90,000
Long term financing obligatio $ 2,147,000 $ 2,208,00!

On June 15, 2009, the Company closed escrow osatleeof its two buildings and its brewery equipmamd concurrently entered into a long
term lease agreement for the same property ang®euit. In connection with the lease the Companyti@®ption to repurchase the buildi
and brewery equipment from 12 months after the cemuament date to the end of the lease term atrdedey of the fair market value or
agreed upon amount. Since the lease contains aabkiyfrovision and other related terms, the Compaetermined it had continui
involvement that did not warrant the recognitioneokale; therefore, the transaction has been atemdar as a longerm financing. Th
proceeds from the sale, net of transaction costge been recorded as a financing obligation inatheunt of $3,056,000. Monthly payme
under the financing agreement are recorded asestt&xpense and a reduction in the financing dfidigeat an implicit rate of 9.9%. T
financing obligation is personally guaranteed up tamit of $150,000 by the principal shareholded &hief Executive Officer, Christophe
Reed.

In connection with the financing obligation, ther@many issued an aggregate of 400,000 warrantsrithase its common stock at $1.20
share for five years. The 400,000 warrants wereedlat $752,000 and reflected as a debt discositig uhe Black Scholes option pric
model. The following assumptions were utilized mung the 400,000 warrants: strike price of $24.062.25; term of 5 years; volatility
91.36% to 110.9%; expected dividends 0%; and disttaie of 2.15% to 2.20%. The 400,000 warrantsewecorded as valuation discount
are being amortized over 15 years, the term ofptirehase option. Amortization of valuation discowss $50,000 during both of the ye
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The aggregate amount due under the financing didigaat December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $2,784,000%2,874,000, respective
Aggregate future obligations under the financinigattion are as follows:

Year
2014 $ 111,00(
2015 135,00(
2016 160,00(
2017 190,00t
2018 222,00(
Thereaftel 1,966,00!
Total $ 2,784,00!

(7) Term Loan

In connection with the Loan and Security Agreemeith PMC Financial Services Group, LLC (see NotetBg Company entered into a T¢
Loan. The loan is for $750,000, bears intereshatprime rate plus 11.6%, not to be below 14.854688% at December 31, 2013), is sec
by all of the unencumbered assets of the Compardy/jsato be repaid in 48 equal installments of gipal and interest of $21,000. This I
matures on April 20, 2017.

December 31

2013 2012
Term loan $ 647,000 $ 575,00(
Less current portion (165,000 (176,000
Long term debt $ 482,000 $ 399,00(
Aggregate future obligations under the term loana follows:
Year
2014 $ 165,00(
2015 482,00!
Total $ 647,00!

(8) Obligations Under Capital Leases



The Company leases equipment for its brewery ojpaatvith an aggregate value of $415,000 underdi2cancelable capital leases. Mos
the leases are personally guaranteed by the Coripahyef executive officer. Monthly payments rangenf $189 to $1,680 per mon
including interest, at interest rates ranging fréril% to 17.32% per annum. At December 31, 2013)thty payments under these le:
aggregated $10,000. The leases expire at varidas ttaough 2018.

Future minimum lease payments under capital leaseas follows:

Years Ending December 31

2014 100,00t
2015 57,00(
2016 40,00(
2017 24,00(
2018 12,00(
Total payment: 233,00(
Less: Amount representing interest (48,000
Present value of net minimum lease paym 185,00(
Less: Current portio 79,00(
Non-current portior $ 106,00(
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(9) Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock
Series A

Series A Preferred stock consists of 500,000 sHst800 par value, 5% nardmulative, participating, preferred stock. As cd@mber 3:
2013 and 2012, there were 9,411 and 10,411 shatssnding, respectively, with a liquidation prefece of $10.00 per share.

The Series A Preferred shares have a 5% pro-rataaanoneumulative dividend. The dividend can be paid iahcar, in the sole and absol
discretion of our board of directors, in shareg@ihmon stock based on its then fair market value.ddhnot declare or pay any dividenc
shares of our securities ranking junior to the gmefd stock until the holders of our preferred kthave received the full nocumulative
dividend to which they are entitled. In additione tholders of our preferred stock are entitleceteive pro rata distributions of dividends ol
“as converted’basis with the holders of our common stock. Duilmg year ended December 31, 2013 the Company acandpaid a $5,0!
dividend payable to the preferred shareholderschvttie board of directors elected to pay throughisBuance of 1,064 shares of its com
stock. During the year ended December 31, 201Xitmpany accrued and paid a $16,000 dividend payabtee preferred shareholds
which the board of directors elected to pay throtighissuance of 4,760 shares of its common stock.

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or @ing up of the Company, or if there is a changeaftrol event, then, subject to the right
the holders of our more senior securities, if ahg, holders of our Series A preferred stock ardledtto receive, prior to the holders of an
our junior securities, $10.00 per share plus altaed and unpaid dividends. Thereafter, all remgigissets shall be distributed pro rata ar
all of our security holders. Since June 30, 2008 have the right, but not the obligation, to redegihor any portion of the Series A prefer
stock by paying the holders thereof the sum ofoifiginal purchase price per share, which was $1@QG all accrued and unpaid dividends.

The Series A preferred stock may be convertedhatoption of the holder, at any time after issuaaod prior to the date such stocl
redeemed, into four shares of common stock, sulifecadjustment in the event of stock splits, resessock splits, stock dividen
recapitalization, reclassification and similar sactions. We are obligated to reserve out of othhaized but unissued shares of common ¢
a sufficient number of such shares to effect thevecsion of all outstanding shares of Series Agirefl stock. During 2013, 1,000 share
Series A preferred stock were converted into 4 8i8fres of common stock and during 2012, 36,210eshair Series A preferred stock w
converted into 144,840 shares of common stock.

Except as provided by law, the holders of our Sefigreferred stock do not have the right to vateany matters, including, without limitatic
the election of directors. However, so long as singres of Series A preferred stock are outstandiegshall not, without first obtaining t
approval of at least a majority of the holdershaf Series A preferred stock, authorize or issueemyujty security having a preference ovel
Series A preferred stock with respect to dividetidsiidation, redemption or voting, including anther security convertible into or exercise
for any equity security other than any senior prefé stock.

Series B

Series B Preferred stock consists of 500,000 sl#@90 par value, 5% naumulative, participating, preferred stock. On Feloy 5, 2012
the Company completed a standby offering of 12 St&fres of its Series B Convertible Preferred Saickl0.00 per share, for gross proc
of $127,800. In connection with the offering, then@pany also issued warrants to purchase 3,575ssbmmmon stock at $1.79 per share
five years. The Company paid legal and broker tdfempproximately $11,000 in connection with theeoifig, resulting in net proceeds to
Company of $117,000.

At December 31, 2013 there were no shares of SBrigé®ferred stock outstanding. At December 31220&re were 45,602 shares of Seri
Preferred stock outstanding.

The Series B Preferred shares have a 5% pro-rateehnoneumulative dividend payable quarterly for a peraddhree years. The dividend ¢
be paid in cash or, in the sole and absolute discref our board of directors, in shares of comnstotk based on its then fair market ve
We cannot declare or pay any dividend on sharesioEecurities ranking junior to the preferred ktaatil the holders of our preferred st
have received the full nocumulative dividend to which they are entitled. Dgrthe year ended December 31, 2012, $29,000videtids wer
accrued and $38,000 of dividends were paid bydhleance of 27,313 shares of common stock. Duriegé¢lr ended December 31, 20it,
balance of 45,602 shares of Series B ConvertitdéeRred Stock were converted to 319,214 sharesmfmon stock and accrued dividend
$74,000 were paid by issuing 47,890 shares of camstark.

Common Stock

Common stock consists of $.0001 par value, 19,80dhares authorized, 12,922,832 shares issuedusidnding as of December 31, 2
and 12,084,673 shares issued and outstandingZasceinber 31, 2012.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coynizaned 1,250 shares of common stock for senat@®.00 per share with a value
$5,000. During the year ended December 31, 20E2Ctmpany issued 14,965 shares of common stodefoices rendered at prices ranq
from $1.13 to $2.17 per share with a value of $23,0
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(10) Stock Options and Warrants
A) Stock Options

In 2001, the Company adopted the Original Bevei@geporation 2001 Stock Option Plan and, in 200&, Gtompany adopted the Regdhc
2007 Stock Option Plan (the “Plans™he options under both plans shall be granted ftiome to time by the Compensation Commit
Individuals eligible to receive options include doyees of the Company, consultants to the Companty directors of the Company. 1
options shall have a fixed price, which will not less than 100% of the fair market value per sloaré¢he grant date. The total numbe
options authorized is 500,000 and 1,500,000, reiqedye for the Original Beverage Corporation 200tb¢k Option Plan and the Reednc
2007 Stock Option Plan.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2&2Company granted 414,000 and 10,000 optionpectisely, to purchase t
Companys common stock at a weighted exercise price of%arl $1.85, respectively, to employees under thesPThe aggregate value
the options vesting, net of forfeitures, during jfears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $¥&@D$107,000, respectively, and
been reflected as compensation cost. As of DeceBhe2013, the aggregate value of unvested opti@s$532,000, which will be amortiz
as compensation cost as the options vest, ov8ry2ars.

On April 9, 2012, the Company repriced 20,000 erygdooptions to an exercise price of $1.83, whichewmeviously $2.43 per share
$2.06 per share. The total increase in stock cosgigm expense, as a result of the repricing wa@0$3 On December 23, 2012, the Comy
repriced 20,000 employee options to an exercisgemf $1.14, which were previously $2.06 per sharel extended the termination dat
420,000 employee options until December 22, 20L6h®ptions previously were to expire on datesweae between 8 months and 48 mo
from the extension date. The total increase inkstmnpensation expense, as a result of the regrimimd extensions, was $53,000; of w|
$48,000 was recognized in the year ended DecentbeP@®L2 and $5,000 in the year ended December @13.2During the year end
December 31, 2013 there were 348,332 options eseztcit an average price of $1.14. Most of suchceses were casless, however, tt
Company did receive proceeds from certain exereggsegating $30,000. During the year ended Decethe2012 there were 408,334 st
options exercised at a price of $1.05 per sharestbsuch exercises were cdshs, however, the Company did receive proceeas &ertail
exercises aggregating $30,000.

The weightedaverage grant date fair value of options grantethdl?2013 and 2012 was $1.97 and $0.40, respegtiVéle fair value of eau
option award is estimated on the date of grantgutie BlackScholes option pricing model that uses the assomgthoted in the followir
table. For purposes of determining the expecteddifthe option, an average of the estimated hglgiariod is used. The ridkee rate fo
periods within the contractual life of the optiaadased on the U. S. Treasury yield in effechattime of the grant.

Year ended December =

2013 2012
Expected volatility 71% 48%
Expected dividend — —
Expected average term (in yea 3.C 3.C
Risk free rate- average 0.8% 0.€%
Forfeiture rate 0% 0%

A summary of option activity as of December 31, 2@hd changes during the two years then ende&septed below:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Prict Terms (Years Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 1,172,000 $ 1.5¢
Grantec 10,00 $ 1.8t
Exercisec (408,33) $ 1.05
Forfeited or expire (166,660 $ 4.4¢€
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 607,000 $ 1.27
Grantec 414,000 % 3.9¢
Exercisec (348,33) $ 1.14
Forfeited or expire: (3333 $ 3.71
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 639,33: $ 3.1¢ 37 % 3,070,001
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 269,08: $ 1.84 3.C $ 1,637,00

As of December 31, 2013, the aggregate intrinsiigesaof $3,070,000 and $1,637,000 were calculadgtieadifference between the market
price and the exercise price of the Company’s statkch was $7.98 as of December 31, 2013.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvestedes granted under the Company’s stock optiangdaf December 31, 2013 and
changes during the year then ended is presentedbel

Nonvested at December 31, 2(
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31, 2(

Weighte(-
Average
Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
195,83t $ 0.6k
414,000 $ 1.9¢
(206,25) $ 0.8¢
(33,339 ¢ 1.74
370,25: $ 1.8¢

Additional information regarding options outstargliss of December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Options Outstanding at December 31, 2

Options Exercisable at
December 31, 201

Weighted
Average
Number of Remaining Weighted Number of Weighted
Shares Contractual Average Shares Average
Range of Exercise Pric Outstanding Life (years) Exercise Prict Exercisable Exercise Pric
$0.01- $1.99 190,33« 2¢ % 1.34 166,99¢ $ 1.2
$2.00- $4.99 429,00( 3¢ % 3.8¢4 102,08: $ 2.7¢
$5.00- $6.99 20,00( 4€ $ 6.7C = -
639,33« 269,08:

B) Warrants

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 282 wwvere no warrants granted. During the yearceiicember 31, 2013 there w
215,290 warrants exercised at prices between §2tGhare and $2.77 per share (an average pri§2.45), resulting in proceeds to
Company of $373,000 and 188,635 shares of comnozk &sued.

The following table summarizes warrant activity foe two years ended December 31, 2013:

Outstanding at December 31, 2(
Grantec

Exercisec

Forfeited or expirel

Outstanding at December 31, 2(
Grantec

Exercisec

Forfeited or expirel

Outstanding at December 31, 2(

Exercisable at December 31, 2(C

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Prict Terms (Years Value
2,006,877 $ 4.32
(574,62) $ 1.61
1,114,99) $ 6.2¢€
317,25  $ 2.4C
(215,29) $ 2.4t
101,96: $ 2.3C 1¢ 3 579,00(
101,96. $ 2.3C 1¢ 3 579,00(

As of December 31, 2013, the aggregate intrinsicevaf $579,000 was calculated as the differend¢edmn the market price and the exer
price of the Company’s stock, which was $7.98 aBefember 31, 2013.

The fair value of each warrant is estimated ondite of grant using the Blac&eholes option pricing model. Expected volatilgybiased on tl
historical volatility of the Company. For purposd#gietermining the expected life of the warrang, thll contract life of the warrant is used. -
risk-free rate for periods within the contractutd bf the warrants is based on the U. S. Treagigtg in effect at the time of the grant.
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The following table summarizes the outstanding amts to purchase Common Stock at December 31, 2013:

Number Exercise Pric Expiration Date:
20,807 $ 2.1C February 201!
64,89¢ $ 2.2F April 2015
16,26. $ 2.77 February 2016

101,96:

(11) Income Taxes

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company hadad@iFederal and state net operating loss camghals to reduce future taxable inco
The amounts available were approximately $17.8ioniland $16.5 million for Federal purposes, redpelt, and $13.3 million and $12
million for state purposes respectively. The Felderaryforward expires in 2033 and the state camyard expires in 2018. Given 1
Companys history of net operating losses, management Btesrdined that it is more likely than not that thempany will not be able
realize the tax benefit of the carryforwards. Actingly, the Company has not recognized a defear@sset for this benefit.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted F4&Belines that address the determination of wérettix benefits claimed or expecte
be claimed on a tax return should be recorded énfithancial statements. Under this guidance, we meapgnize the tax benefit from
uncertain tax position only if it is more likelyah not that the tax position will be sustained rangination by the taxing authorities, base!
the technical merits of the position. The tax béaeécognized in the financial statements fromhsaiposition should be measured based c
largest benefit that has a greater than fifty patrtikelihood of being realized upon ultimate settient. This guidance also provides guidanc
derecognition, classification, interest and peraltin income taxes, accounting in interim periodsraquires increased disclosures. At the
of adoption, and as of December 31, 2013 and 20&2Company did not have a liability for unrecoguizax benefits, and no adjustment
required at adoption.

The Companys policy is to record interest and penalties orediaén tax provisions as income tax expense. A3emfember 31, 2013 and 20
the Company has not accrued interest or penakiased to uncertain tax positions. Additionallyx teears 2007 through 2013 remain ope
examination by the major taxing jurisdictions toigththe Company is subject.

Upon the attainment of taxable income by the Comparanagement will assess the likelihood of readjzhe tax benefit associated with
use of the carryforwards and will recognize a defétax asset at that time.

Significant components of the Company’s deferredbine tax assets are as follows as of:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Deferred income tax assi

Net operating loss carryforwa $ 6,400,000 $ 6,000,001
Valuation allowanct (6,400,001 (6,000,001
Net deferred income tax as: $ — 3 —

Reconciliation of the effective income tax ratdtie U.S. statutory rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 2

2013 2012
Federal Statutory tax ra (34)% (34)%
State tax, net of federal bene (5% (5)%
(39)% (39)%
Valuation allowanct 3% 3%
Effective tax rate -% -%
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

The Company leases warehouse space undecarmwelable operating leases. Rental expense umeker nd other operating leases for the
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $196,000287d0P0, respectively.

Future payments under these leases as of Decerhp20B3 are as follows:

Year ending December 3 Amount
2014 $ 186,00(
2015 92,00(
2016 95,00(
2017 89,00(
Total $ 462,00!

Other Commitments

The Company has entered into contracts with custewith clauses that commit the Company to pay féedélse Company terminates
agreement early or without cause. The contractdarathe customer to have the right to distribtite Companys products to a defined type
retailer within a defined geographic region. If tBempany should terminate the contract or not aatmally renew the agreements with
cause, amounts would be due to the customer. Aoémber 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has ns pbarerminate or not renew ¢
agreement with any of their customers; therefooesuch fees have been accrued in the accomparnyentcfal statements.

(13) Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are a party to claims andilggoceedings arising in the ordinary course dfifiess. Our management evaluates
exposure to these claims and proceedings indiviiaald in the aggregate and provides for poteftsdes on such litigation if the amoun
the loss is estimable and the loss is probable.

From August 3, 2005 through April 7, 2006, we ig56883,156 shares of our common stock in conneetitimour initial public offering. Thes
securities represented all of the shares issu@drmection with the initial public offering prioo tOctober 11, 2006. These shares issu
connection with the initial public offering may hebeen issued in violation of either federal otestecurities laws, or both, and may be su
to rescission.

On August 12, 2006, we made a rescission offelltbadders of the outstanding shares that we beliake subject to rescission, pursuai
which we offered to repurchase these shares thestamding from the holders. At the expiration of tlescission offer on September 18, 2
the rescission offer was accepted by 32 of theredfe to the extent of 28,420 shares for an aggrezfe$119,000, including statutory inter
The shares that were tendered for rescission werhased by third parties and not from our funds.

Federal securities laws do not provide that a ssgm offer will terminate a purchaseright to rescind a sale of stock that was noisteged a
required or was not otherwise exempt from suchstegfion requirements. With respect to the offesgls rejected the rescission offer, we |
continue to be liable under Federal and state gesutaws for up to an amount equal to the valti@lbshares of common stock issuet
connection with the initial public offering plusyastatutory interest we may be required to payt i§ determined that we offered securi
without properly registering them under federastate law, or securing an exemption from regisirgtiegulators could impose monetary f
or other sanctions as provided under these lawsveider, we believe the rescission offer providesnaith additional meritorious defens
against any future claims relating to these shares.

Except as set forth above, we believe that thezenar material litigation matters at the currentetirhlthough the results of such litigat
matters and claims cannot be predicted with cegtame believe that the final outcome of such ckimmd proceedings will not have a mat
adverse impact on our financial position, liquidity results of operations.
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(14) Related Party Activity

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coynpatered into an agreement for the distributiorit®fproducts internationally. T
agreement is between the Company and a compangottedtby two brothers of Christopher Reed, Chigéé&utive Officer of the Compar
The agreement remains in effect until terminatecellyer party and requires the Company to pay 19% e defined sales of the previ
month. During the years ended December 31, 2012@amd, the Company paid commissions of $1,000,camihg the year ended Decem
31, 2012, the Company paid commissions of $15,000.

(15) Subsequent Events

During the first quarter of 2014, Company employeesrcised options to purchase 173,700 sharesdftimpany’s common stock on a cast
less basis at prices between $1.14 and $4.00 pee.sfThe Company issued 115,120 shares of cominok ®r such casless exercises
options.

On January 30, 2014 and February 4, 2014, resgdgtihe Companyg former CFO and former COO resigned from the CampAt the time
of their separation from the Company, the forméicefs held unvested options issued in 2013 tohmse an aggregate of 37,500 shares «
Companys common stock which were due to vest through Ma2@t6. The Company agreed to accelerate vestitiges€ options so they wi
100% vested as of February 17, 2014. Employee stgtions which are subject to accelerated vestingeanination are treated a:
modification. As such, the Company will recognize expense related to the accelerated vesting iratth@unt of $151,000 during the f
quarter of 2014, which is the fair value of theiops determined using the Bla8choles option pricing model with the following asmptions
risk-free interest rate of 0.75%; dividend yield08b; volatility of 59%; and an expected life of 8ays.

On February 17, 2014, the Company granted optimesriployees to purchase 165,500 shares of the Gongpeommon stock with an exerc
price of $7.07 per share. The fair value of thearst on the date granted was determined to be zippately $466,000 using the BlaGehole
option pricing model with the following assumptiomsk-free interest rate of 0.75%; dividend yield of 086|atility of 59%; and an expect
life of 3 years, and will be amortized ratably ottee vesting period of 3 years.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Under the supervision and with the participationoaf management, including our Chief Executive €&ffiand our Interim Chief Financ
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures, as such term is definelér Securities and Exchange Ac
1934 Rules 1345(f). Based on this evaluation, our Chief Exeaut®fficer and our Interim Chief Financial Officeoreluded that tt
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures wigzeteve as of December 31, 2013.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

There have been no changes in the Compaimgernal control over financial reporting duritige fourth quarter of 2013 that have mater
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, the Company'’s internal control over financigborting.

Managemen's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repdrtg

Our management is responsible for establishingraaghtaining adequate internal control over finahoggpoorting. Our internal control ov
financial reporting is a process designed to prvahsonable assurance regarding the reliabiliguofinancial reporting and the preparatio
financial statements for external purposes in ataore with generally accepted accounting principl@sr internal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and proceduras (i pertain to the maintenance of records thmteasonable detail, accurately and f:
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetsof the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assgrdhat transactions are recorde
necessary to permit preparation of financial stetes in accordance with generally accepted acaogirrinciples, and that receipts
expenditures of the Company are being made onbcaordance with authorizations of management arettdrs of the Company; and (
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, asedisposition of the Compars/asse
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdures may deteriorate. Management assessed tl@iaffeess of the Compargyinterna
control over financial reporting as of December 2013. In making this assessment, we used theriariset forth by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis§@SO) ininternal Control — Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessmenti
concluded that, as of December 31, 2013, the Coypanternal control over financial reporting watéegtive.

This annual report does not include an attestatmort of our independent registered public acdagnfirm regarding internal control o\
financial reporting. Managemeant'report was not subject to attestation by our pedeent registered public accounting firm, pursua
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform @whsumer Protection Act that permit us to providdy managemend’ report in thi
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

This report shall not be deemed to be filed forppges of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or ottsxwsubject to the liabilities of that sect
and is not incorporated by reference into any dilof the Company, whether made before or afterddte hereof, regardless of any ger
incorporation language in such filing.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters, Control Persons and Corporate Governange&Compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act

General

Our directors currently have terms which will endbar next annual meeting of the stockholders ait threir successors are elected and qui
subject to their death, resignation or removalid@fs serve at the discretion of the board of dinesc Our board members are encourag
attend meetings of the board of directors and theual meeting of stockholders. The board of dinectreld nine meetings in 2013. -
following table sets forth certain information witbspect to our current directors and executivieefs:

Name Position Age
Christopher J. Ree President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmathef Boarc 55
David J. Williams Interim Chief Financial Office 53
Judy Holloway Ree: Secretary and Directt 54
Mark Harris Director 58
Daniel S.J. Muffolettc Director 59
Michael Fischmal Director 58

Business Experience of Directors and Executive Offers

Christopher J. Reedounded our company in 1987. Mr. Reed has serveduashairman, President and Chief Executive Offgiace ou
incorporation in 1991. Mr. Reed also served as {Jhiancial Officer during fiscal year 2007 untik@ber 1, 2007 and again from April
2008 to January 19, 2010. Mr. Reed has been reigorisr our design and products, including thegimal product recipes, the propriet
brewing process and the packaging and marketirajegiies. Mr. Reed received a B.S. in Chemical Eraging in 1980 from Rennsel:
Polytechnic Institute in Troy, New York.

David J. Williamswas appointed to serve as its Interim Chief Fir@n€ifficer on February 7, 2014. Mr. Williams is ar@fied Public
Accountant, Certified Management Accountant andifi@ Juris Doctor. Mr. Williams has extensive eigere as a chief financial offic
controller, and auditor, providing expertise to leitprivate and nomrofit companies and has worked most recently thinddalueDriven CFt
since October 2010. Mr. Williams served as ChiefaRicial Officer and Legal Mediator to National Paiimns and Advertising, Inc., a provi
of advertising and printing services, from 200&264.0. From 2006 to 2008 he served as Chief Fine@dfacer and InHouse Counsel of Flu
Media Networks, Inc. (currently Mood Media Corpavat (TSX: MM) (LSE AIM: MM)), an e-commerce stamp. From 2000 to 2005

served as Chief Financial Officer and Hiouse Counsel to Professionals Online Network,, lacprivate company developing online ca
services. From 1997 to 2000 he served as ChiehEiabOfficer to Networks Telephony Corporationdeveloper of business class VolP.

Williams received a bachelor degree from Northdlindis University in 1984 and a Juris Doctor fr@@outhwestern School of Law in 1997.

Judy Holloway Reechas been with us since 1992 and, as we have groasyun the accounting, purchasing and shippingraoéiving
departments at various times since the 1990s. MedRas been one of our directors since June 20@4our Secretary since October 199
the 1980s, Ms. Reed managed media tracking forsaArmmgeles Infomercial Media Buying Group and wasaacount manager with a Beve
Hills, California stock portfolio management compaBhe earned a Business Degree from MIU in 1984..Réed is the wife of Christophe
Reed, our Chairman, President and Chief Executiliee.

Mark Harris has been a member of our board of directors simréd 2005. Mr. Harris is an independent ventureitzdist and has been retit
from the work force since 2002. In late 2003, Markis joined a group of Amgen colleagues in fundiepStem, Inc., a company involvec
stemeell storage, archiving, and research to whichsha founding investor. From 1991 to 2002, Mr. Hawborked at Amgen, Inc. (Nasd
AMGN), a preeminent biotech company, managing mafcAmgen’s media production for internal use and publictrefes. Mr. Harris spe
the decade prior working in the aerospace indwsgtiyorthrop with similar responsibilities.

Daniel S.J. Muffoletto, N.D.has been a member of our board of directors froml 005 to December 2006 and from January 200th¢
present. Dr. Muffoletto has practiced as a Natuttipahysician since 1986. He has served as chefuive officer of Its Your Earth, a natL
products marketing company since June 2004. Frod3 20 2005, Dr. Muffoletto worked as Sales and M#rlg Director for Worthingtol
Moore & Jacobs, a Commercial Law League member $ienving FedEx, UPS, DHL and Kodak, among otheemF2001 to 2003, he was
owneroperator of the David St. Michel Art Gallery in Moeal, Québec. From 1991 to 2001, Dr. Muffolettoswiae owner/operator of
Naturopathic Apothecary, Herbal Alter*Natives ofafite, Washington and Ellicott City, Maryland. Thpothecary housed Dr. Muffole’'s
Naturopathic practice. Dr. Muffoletto received acBalors of Arts degree in Government and Commuioicatfrom the University of Baltimo
in 1977, and conducted postgraduate work in thedsiof Public Administration and Publication Desigt the University of Baltimore fra
1978 to 1979. In 1986, he received his Doctoratdattiropathic Medicine from the Santa Fe AcademiMedling, Santa Fe, New Mexico.
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Michael Fischmanhas been a member of our board of directors sinmél 2005. Since 1998, Mr. Fischman has been Peesidnd chie
executive officer of the APEX course, the corporatening division of the International Associatiafi Human Values. In addition, N
Fischman is a founding member and the directorahing for USA at the Art of Living Foundation, giobal nonprofit educational ar
humanitarian organization at which he has coordhatver 200 personal development instructors sifég.

Family Relationships

Other than the relationship of Christopher J. Reed, Judy Holloway Reed, Christopher Rsadife and a board member, none of our dire
or executive officers are related to one another.

Legal Proceedings

To the best of our knowledge, none of our executifficers or directors are parties to any matepiaiceedings adverse to Regdhave an
material interest adverse to Reed'’s or have, duliagast ten years:

e been convicted in a criminal proceeding or beenestito a pending criminal proceeding (excludiraffic violations and other min
offenses)

e had any bankruptcy petition filed by or against fier or any business of which he/she was a geparaher or executive office
either at the time of the bankruptcy or within tyemars prior to that time

e been subject to any order, judgment, or decreesutzgequently reversed, suspended or vacatedy afoamt of competent jurisdictic
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, sersging or otherwise limiting his/her involvementany type of business, securit
futures, commodities or banking activitis

e been found by a court of competent jurisdictiondiivil action), the Securities and Exchange Cossion or the Commaodity Futu
Trading Commission to have violated a federal etestsecurities or commodities law, and the judgntexst not been revers
suspended, or vacate

e been subject to, or party to, any judicial or adstmative order, judgment, decree , or finding, swbsequently reversed, suspendt
vacated, relating to an alleged violation of (iy &ederal or State securities or commodities lawnegulation, (ii) any law or regulati
respecting financial institutions or insurance camips including, but not limited to, a temporaryp@rmanent injunction, order
disgorgement or restitution, civil money penaltytemporary or permanent cease-atedist order, or removal or prohibition orde
(i) any law or regulation prohibiting mail or vérfraud or fraud in connection with any businesttygror been the subject of, o
party to, any sanction or order, not subsequeriensed, suspended or vacated, of anyreglifatory organization (as definec
Section 3(a)(26) of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C.(@826))), any registered entity (as defined int®acl(a)(29) of the Commodi
Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. 1(a)(29))), or any equivakxthange, association, entity or organization tias disciplinary authority ov
its members or persons associated with a mer

Corporate Governance

We are committed to having sound corporate govemaninciples. We believe that such principles @ssential to running our busin
efficiently and to maintaining our integrity in thearketplace. There have been no changes to treequies by which stockholders n
recommend nominees to our board of directors.

Director Qualifications

We believe that our directors should have the tigpeofessional and personal ethics and valuesistent with our longstanding values
standards. They should have broad experience apdhey-making level in business or banking. They shouldcbmmitted to enhancii
stockholder value and should have sufficient timearry out their duties and to provide insight amdctical wisdom based on experiel
Their service on other boards of public compantesukl be limited to a number that permits themgegitheir individual circumstances,
perform responsibly all director duties for us. Eairector must represent the interests of allldtolders. When considering potential dire
candidates, the board of directors also considexrandidate character, judgment, diversity, age and skitls|uding financial literacy ar
experience in the context of our needs and thesektthe board of directors.

Director Independence

The board of directors has determined that threenlmees of our board of directors, Mr. Harris, Dr. fidletto and Mr. Fischman, &
independent under the New York Stock Exchange diStempany Manual. We intend to maintain at leastehindependent directors on
board of directors in the future.

23




Code of Ethics

Our Chief Executive Officer and all senior finaraifficers, including the Chief Financial Officeare bound by a Code of Ethics that com
with Item 406 of Regulation S-B of the Exchange.Aatir Code of Ethics is posted on our website atwveedsinc.com.

Board Structure and Committee Composition

As of the date of this Annual Report, our boardlioéctors has five directors and the following thetanding committees: an Audit Commit
a Compensation Committee and a Nominations and i@amee Committee. These committees were formedrinaly 2007.

Audit CommitteeOur Audit Committee oversees our accounting andnfinal reporting processes, internal systems afwatiing and financii
controls, relationships with independent auditerd audits of financial statements. Specific resjimlitses include the following:

e selecting, hiring and terminating our independentit®rs;

e evaluating the qualifications, independence antbpmance of our independent auditc

e approving the audit and n-audit services to be performed by our independaditars;

e reviewing the design, implementation, adequacyedfattiveness of our internal controls and criti@atounting policies

e overseeing and monitoring the integrity of our fin&l statements and our compliance with legal regdilatory requirements as tl
relate to financial statements or accounting msit

e reviewing with management and our independent atgliainy earnings announcements and other publicusicements regarding
results of operations; at

e preparing the audit committee report that the Séfliires in our annual proxy stateme

Our Audit Committee is comprised of Dr. Muffolettdy. Harris and Mr. Fischman. Dr. Muffoletto senas Chairman of the Audit Committ
The board of directors has determined that theethmembers of the Audit Committee are independedéwuthe rules of the SEC and the !
York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual and EraMuffoletto qualifies as an “audit committeedimcial expert,’as defined by the rul
of the SEC. Our board of directors has adoptedittenrcharter for the Audit Committee meeting apglile standards of the SEC and the
York Stock Exchange.

Compensation Committe@ur Compensation Committee assists our board dfctlirs in determining and developing plans for
compensation of our officers, directors and empdsy&pecific responsibilities include the following

e approving the compensation and benefits of our @ke officers;
e reviewing the performance objectives and actudoperance of our officers; ar
e administering our stock option and other equity pensation plan:

Our Compensation Committee is comprised of Dr. Mletto, Mr. Harris and Mr. Fischman. The board wéctors has determined that al
the members of the Compensation Committee are @rdegmt under New York Stock Exchange Listed Compdagual Section 303A.02.
affirmatively determining the independence of adior who will serve on the compensation committee, Companys board considered
factors specifically relevant to whether the dioedtas a relationship to the Company which is nltey the directors ability to be independe
from management in connection with the duties ebmmittee member, including, without limitation:) (the source of compensation of
director, including any consulting, advisory or @tltompensatory fee paid by the Company; and (2thvn the director is affiliated with t
Company, or an affiliate of the Company.
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Our board of directors has adopted a written chéotethe Compensation Committee.

Nominations and Governance CommittOur Nominations and Governance Committee assigsbtard of directors by identifying &
recommending individuals qualified to become merabafr our board of directors, reviewing correspormgefrom our stockholders, a
establishing, evaluating and overseeing our cotpa@avernance guidelines. Specific responsibilitietude the following:

e evaluating the composition, size and governanaeuofooard of directors and its committees and ngakdtommendations regard
future planning and the appointment of directorsuo committees

e establishing a policy for considering stockholdeminees for election to our board of directors;
e evaluating and recommending candidates for ele¢tiaur board of director:

Our Nominations and Governance Committee is coragref Dr. Muffoletto and Mr. Fischman. The boarddakctors has determined that
of the members of the Nominations and Governanceir@ittee are independent under the rules of the Newk Stock Exchange List
Company Manual. Our board of directors has adoptedtten charter for the Nominations and Corpofateernance Committee.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41%8% amended (the “Exchange Act&quires our directors and executive officers
beneficial holders of more than 10% of our commimls to file with the SEC initial reports of ownhbig and reports of changes in owner:
of our equity securities.

To our knowledge, based solely upon a review ofifso8 and 4 and amendments thereto furnished toReeder 17 CFR 240.163(e) during
our most recent fiscal year and Forms 5 and amentntbereto furnished to Resdivith respect to our most recent fiscal year oitten
representations from the reporting persons, weebelithat during the year ended December 31, 20t 3lioectors, executive officers a
persons who own more than 10% of our common stookptied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The following table summarizes all compensationfiecal years 2013 and 2012 received by our pradogxecutive officer, former princiy

financial officer and former chief operating officevho were the only executive officers of the Camy in fiscal year 2013, oulName
Executive Officers”.

Non-
Qualified
Option  Non- Equity Deferred
Name and Stock Awards Incentive Plar Compensatior All Other
Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Awards ($)(1) Compensatior Earnings Compensatior Total
Christopher J. Reed,Chief 2013 $217,00( $29,00( -$ $ 5,0002) $251,00(
Executive Officer (Principal Executive Office 2012 $217,000 $ 4,00( -$ $ 5,0002) $226,00(
James Lineschformer Chief Financial Office 2013 $175,00( $14,00( -$ $189,00(
(Principal Financial Officer) (3 2012 $181,00¢ $29,00( -$ $210,00¢
Thierry Foucaut, former Chief Operating Officer ( 2013 $180,00( $14,00( -3 - $194,00(
2012 $184,15: $ - -$ - $184,15:

(1) The amounts represent the fair value for afirebased payment awards, calculated on the date af graaccordance with Financ
Accounting Standards, excluding any impact of assliforfeiture rates

(2) Represents value of automobile provided to Christopd. Reec
(3) James Linesch resigned from his position as Chiedrieial Officer effective January 30, 20:
(4) Thierry Foucaut resigned from his position as CRipkrating Officer effective February 4, 20
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Employment Agreements

There are no employment agreements with our exexgfficers. Mr. Reed is currently paid an annuala8/ of $217,000; Mr. Linesch w
paid an annual salary of $175,000 through the offaltés resignation; and Mr. Foucaut was paid aruahsalary of $180,000 through the dat
his resignation. Mr. Williams, as Interim Chief Bircial Officer, is paid consulting fees equivalémtan annual salary of $180,000. /
bonuses are discretionary.

Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information regamlinnexercised options and equity incentive planrdsvdor each Named Executive Offi
outstanding as of December 31, 2013.

Number of Equity Incentive
Number of Securities Plan Awards
Securities Underlying Number of
Underlying  Unexercisec Securities
Unexercise( Options Underlying Option Option
Options (#) #) Unexerciset Exercise Expiration
Name and Positio Exercisable Unexercisabl Unearned Optior Price Date
Christopher J. Reed, Chief Executive Offi 50,00( - - 3 1.14  12/22/16
25,00( 18,75((1) $ 4.0C 03/03/18
James Linesch, former Chief Financial Offi 6,66 - - $ 1.14  12/22/16
20,00( - - $ 114  12/22/16
25,00( 18,75((2) - $ 4.0C 03/03/18
Thierry Foucaut, former Chief Operating Offic 12,50( - - $ 1.14  12/22/16
25,00( 18,75((2) $ 4.0C 03/03/18

Vesting of Options:

(1) vest ¥ per yee
(2) These options vested as part each dir’s severance packacg

Director Compensation

The following table summarizes the compensatiod paour directors for the fiscal year ended Decendd, 2013:

Fees
Earned o Non-Equity
Paid in Stock Option Incentive Pla All Other
Name Cash Awards Awards  Compensatic Compensatic Total
Judy Holloway Ree! $ 1,65( $ 1,65(
Mark Harris $ - $ -
Daniel S.J. Muffolettc $  11,94¢1) $  11,94¢
Michael Fischmai $ 90C $ 90C

(1) Since November 2007, Dr. Muffoletto receives $888month to serve as the Chairman of the Audit Cdtam

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners, Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table reflects, as of March 13, 20t beneficial common stock ownership of: (a) eafcbur directors, (b) each of our curr
named executive officers, (c) each person knowadio be a beneficial holder of 5% or more of ammon stock, and (d) all of our execu
officers and directors as a group.

Except as otherwise indicated below, the personwedan the table have sole voting and investmewepavith respect to all shares of comr
stock held by them. Unless otherwise indicated pitiecipal address of each listed executive offied director is 13000 South Spring Sti
Los Angeles, California 90061.
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Percentage

of Shares

Number of Shares Beneficially
Named Beneficial Owne Beneficially Ownec Owned (1)
Directors and Named Executive Officers
Christopher J. Ree®® 2,425 47! 18.€
Judy Holloway Ree® 2,425,47! 18.€
Mark Harris(®) 9,36¢ *
Daniel S.J. Muffoletto, N.D 0 *
Michael Fischmal 0 *
David J. Williams 0 *
Directors and executive officers as a group (6 qes} 2,434,83 20.7
5% or greater stockholders
Robert Ree® 800,00( 6.4

* Less than 1%

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordancth e rules of the SEC. Shares of common stockestlo options or warrar
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 dafydMarch 18, 2014 are deemed outstanding for caimguhe percentage ownershif
the stockholder holding the options or warrants &g not deemed outstanding for computing the pésge ownership of any ott
stockholder. Unless otherwise indicated in therfot#s to this table, we believe stockholders naimékde table have sole voting and ¢
investment power with respect to the shares s#t fipposite such stockholdemame. Percentage of ownership is based on appaitedi
13,037,952 shares of common stock outstanding &aoth 18, 2014

(2) Christopher J. Reed and Judy Holloway Reed areamssbnd wife. The same number of shares of comnuak $s shown for each
them, as they may each be deemed to be the behefigner of all of such shares. Consists of 2,388 &hares of common stock
options to purchase 41,250 shares of common sfde&s not include options to purchase up to 63, Tedes of common stock, wh
vest over three year

(3) The address for Mr. Harris is 160 Barranca RoadayiNegy Park, California 9132

(4) Robert Reed is the trustee of the Reed Family dgakle Trust One and the Reed Family IrrevocablestTfwo. Each trust owns 400,(
shares of common stock. As sole Trustee, Roberd Rekls voting and dispositive power over all afgh share:

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Our board of directors has adopted written polieied procedures for the review of any transactior@ngement or relationship between Reed
and one of our executive officers, directors, disemominees or 5% or greater stockholders (orr tiremediate family members), each
whom we refer to as a “related person,” in whicbhstelated person has a direct or indirect materiafest.

If a related person proposes to enter into sucarsaction, arrangement or relationship, definea ‘@slated party transactiortfie related par
must report the proposed related party transattiaur Chief Financial Officer. The policy callsrfihe proposed related party transaction 1
reviewed and, if deemed appropriate, approved byNtbminations and Governance Committee. Our Nononstand Governance Commit
is comprised of Dr. Muffoletto and Mr. Fischman.eThoard of directors has determined that all of tfembers of the Nominations ¢
Governance Committee are independent under the ofitne New York Stock Exchange Listed Company dnif practicable, the reportir
review and approval will occur prior to entry intbe transaction. If advance review and approvaids practicable, the Nominations
Governance Committee will review, and, in its dion, may ratify the related party transaction.yAelated party transactions that
ongoing in nature will be reviewed annually at animum. The related party transactions listed belosve reviewed by the full board
directors. Prior to August 2005, we did not havdejpendent directors on our board to review andagprelated party transactions. -
Nominations and Governance Committee shall revigwré related party transactiol

During the years December 31, 2013 and 2012, we patticipated in the following transactions in ehhia related person had or will ha\
direct or indirect material interest:

Judy Holloway Reed, our Secretary and directoghsstopher J. Reed’s spouse.
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During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coynpatered into an agreement for the distributiorit®fproducts internationally. T
agreement is between the Company and a compangottedtby two brothers of Christopher Reed, Chigéé&utive Officer of the Compar
The agreement remains in effect until terminatecelblyer party and requires the Company to pay 19%e defined sales of the previt
month. During the year ended December 31, 2013Ctdmpany paid commissions on sales of $15,000dandg the year ended December
2012, the Company paid commissions on sales 00$66,

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Weinberg & Company, P.A. (“Weinbergiyas our independent registered public accountimg for the years ended December 31, 201:
2012,

The following table shows the fees paid or accrogdis for the audit and other services provided\sinberg for the years ended Decen
31, 2013 and 2012.

2013 2012
Audit Fees $ 87,000 $ 57,00(
Audit-Related Fee 0 0
Tax Fees 9,00( 5,00(
All Other Fees 0 0
Total $ 96,00 $ 62,00(

As defined by the SEC, (i) “audit feeslte fees for professional services rendered bypoucipal accountant for the audit of our ani
financial statements and review of financial stageta included in our Form 1K or for services that are normally provided bg #tcounta
in connection with statutory and regulatory filings engagements for those fiscal years; (ii) “aveliated fees’are fees for assurance
related services by our principal accountant tihatreasonably related to the performance of thé audeview of our financial statements i
are not reported under “audit fees;” (iii) “tax $are fees for professional services rendered byoacipal accountant for tax compliance,
advice, and tax planning; and (iv) “all other feas& fees for products and services provided bypaacipal accountant, other than the serv
reported under “audit fees,” “audit-related feemd “tax fees.”

Audit Fees

Services provided to us by Weinberg with respediutch periods consisted of the audits of our fir@rstatements and limited reviews of
financial statements included in Quarterly ReportsForm 10Q. Weinberg also provided services with respec¢héofiling of our registratic
statements in 2013 and 2012.

Audit Related Fees

Weinberg did not provide any professional servicess with which would relate to “audit related $e'e

Tax Fees

Weinberg prepared our 2013 and 2012 Federal atelintaome taxes.

All Other Fees

Weinberg did not provide any professional servicess with which would relate to “other fees.”

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedurs

Under the SEC's rules, the Audit Committee is regglito pre-approve the audit and reurdit services performed by the independent regic
public accounting firm in order to ensure that tlieynot impair the auditors’ independence. The Casion’s rules specify the types of non
audit services that an independent auditor may provide to its audit client and establish the Au@ibmmitteeS responsibility fc
administration of the engagement of the independsgistered public accounting firm.

Consistent with the SEC'’s rules, the Audit Comneit@harter requires that the Audit Committee revéaw preapprove all audit services ¢
permitted noraudit services provided by the independent regdtgrublic accounting firm to us or any of our sdimies. The Aud
Committee may delegate papproval authority to a member of the Audit Comestiand if it does, the decisions of that membert rhe
presented to the full Audit Committee at its nesttexduled meeting. Accordingly, 100% of audit seesiand noraudit services described
this Item 14 were pre-approved by the Audit Compeitt

There were no hours expended on the principal ateatis engagement to audit the registafitiancial statements for the most recent f
year that were attributed to work performed by pessother than the principal accoun’s full-time, permanent employees.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements
(a) 1. Financial Statements

See Index to Financial Statements in Item 8 of Amisual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporatestein by reference.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All other financial statement schedules have begitted because they are either not applicable @rékjuired information is shown
the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

See the Exhibit Index, which follows the signatyra&ge of this Annual Report on Form KQ-which is incorporated herein
reference.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a) (3) above.
(c) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(a) (2) above.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjgaAct, the registrant caused this Report to geesl on its behalf by the undersigr
thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 25, 2014 REED’S, INC.
a Delaware corporatic

By: /s/ Christopher J. Ree

Christopher J. Reed
Chief Executive Office

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this Repod baen signed below by the following persons onalfedf the registrant and in t
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of March 25, 2014
/s/ CHRISTOPHER J. REE the Board of Director
Christopher J. Reed (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ DAVID J. WILLIAMS Interim Chief Financial Office March 25, 201«
David J. Williams (Principal Financial Officer
/s/ JUDY HOLLOWAY REE Director March 25, 201«
Judy Holloway Reed
/s| MARK HARRI! Director March 25, 201«
Mark Harris
/s/ DANIEL S.J. MUFFOLETT! Director March 25, 201«

Daniel S.J. Muffoletto

/s MICHAEL FISCHMANM Director March 25, 201«
Michael Fischman
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EXHIBIT INDEX

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Reed'’s, Inc. fded September 7, 2001 (Incorporated by refereioc&xhibit 3.1 to Reed’s, Ing’
Registration Statement on Form-2 (File No. 33-120451))

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Imporation of Reed, Inc. as filed September 27, 2004 (Incorporatedetference t
Exhibit 3.2 to Re€’s, Inc’s Registration Statement on Form-2 (File No. 33-120451))

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Imporation of Reed, Inc. as filed December 18, 2007 (Incorporateddigrence t
Exhibit 3.3 to Re€’s, Inc’s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (File No. 33-156908))

3.4 Certificate of Designations, Preferences andghRi of Series A Preferred Stock of Resdinc. as filed October 12, 2C
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to F's, Inc’s Registration Statement on Form-2 (File No. 33-120451))

3.5 Certificate of Correction to Certificate of Desigioas as filed November 10, 2004 (Incorporated &fenence to Exhibit 3.4
Reed’s, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form SB#2 No. 333-120451))

3.6 Amended Certificate of Designation of Series B Gaible Preferred Stock, filed December 4, 200 dfherewith;

3.7 Bylaws of Reed'’s Inc., as amended (Incorporétedeference to Exhibit 3.1 to Reed'’s, Inc.’s @uir Report on Form B- filed
December 19, 201:

4.1 Form of common stock certificate (Incorporabsdreference to Exhibit 4.1 to Reed’s, Inc.’s Ragiton Statement on Form SB-
(File No. 33:-120451))

4.2 Form of Series A preferred stock certificatec@rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Reelfis,’'s Registration Statement

Form SE-2 (File No. 33-120451))

10.1 Waiver to Loan and Security Agreement datatudey 5, 2009 (Incorporated by reference to Exhilfit19 to Reed’s, Inc’
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (File No. 33-156908))

10.2* 2001 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by refee to Exhibit 4.3 to Reed’s, Inc.’s Registrat®tatement on Form SB-File No
333-120451)

10.3 Reed’s Inc. Master Brokerage Agreement betwReed's, Inc. and ReexI'Brokerage, Inc. dated May 1, 2008 (Incorporatg
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Re€'s, Inc’s Registration Statement on For-1 (File No. 33-156908))

10.4* 2007 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by referendexhibit 10.22 to Re€'s, Inc’s Form 10K filed March 27, 200!

10.5* 2009 Consultant Stock Plan (Incorporateddfgnence to Exhibit 4.1 to Reed’s, Inc.’s RegigtraStatement on Form ${File No
335-157359))

10.6* 2010 Incentive Stock Plan (Incorporated bignence to Exhibit 4.1 to Reed’s, Inc.’s RegistratStatement on Form &{File No
333-165906))

10.7* 201(-2 Incentive Stock Plan (Incorporated by referemmcExhibit 4.1 to Re€’s, Inc’s Registration Statement on For-8 (File No.

10.8 Loan and Security Agreement between PMC FiahBervices Group, LLC and ResdlInc. dated November 8, 2011 (Incorpor
by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to R¢'s, Inc’s Form 10Q as filed November 14, 20

14.1 Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference xbiliit 14.1 to Reed’s, Inc.’s Registration Stateinen Form SB-2 (File No. 333
157359))

21. Subsidiaries of Ref's, Inc., filed herewith

23.1 Consent of Weinberg & Co., P.A., filed herewi

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawnt $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer puesit to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursiea8ection 906 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer puent to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursad@ction 906 of the Sarban@siey
Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* Indicates a management contract or compensatomyoplarrangemen

In accordance with SEC Release 33-8238, Exhibit 88d 32.2 are being furnished and not filed.

Furnished herewith. XBRL (Extensible Business Répgr_anguage) information is furnished and nadilor a part of a registration staten
or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or ReSecurities Act of 1933, as amended, is deeroeéiled for purposes of Section 18 of

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, drahwtse is not subject to liability under thesetioss.
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EXHIBIT 21
REED’S, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES

NONE







EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
Reeds, Inc.

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referancthe previously filed Registration StatementR¥ed'’s, Inc. on Form 8-(SEC Fil¢
Number 33-178623) which was filed with the Securities and liamgye Commission on December 20, 2011, of our tefaied March 2!

2014, relating to the financial statements of Redds, appearing in the annual report on FormKlof Reeds, Inc, for the years en
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

/sl Weinberg & Company, P.
WEINBERG & COMPANY, P.A.

Los Angeles, Californii
March 25, 201«







EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Christopher J. Reed, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Ree(s Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omisteie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunegsaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principa

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyid’'s internal control over financial reportirizat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr® that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal abrtver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewdent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controlgrafinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registra’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: March 25, 2014 /sl Christopher J. Ree

Christopher J. Ree
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer







EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David J. Williams, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Ree(s Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omisteie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunegsaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principa

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémthds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyid’'s internal control over financial reportirizat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr® that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal abrtver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewdent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controlgrafinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registra’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: March 25, 2014 /s/ David J. Williams

David J. Williams
Interim Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer







EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTT O
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10#Reed’s, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Comydarfor the year ended December
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @msion on the date hereof (the “ReporChristopher J. Reed, Chief Executive Office
the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.§.C350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sasiaxiey Act of 2002, that, to the best
his knowledge and belief:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExafeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiplyesents, in all material respects, the finanaiadition and results of operations

the Company.
REELC'S, INC.

Date: March 25, 2014 By: /s/ Christopher J. Ree
Christopher J. Ree
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer







EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10#Reed’s, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Comydarfor the year ended December
2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Reportfames Linesch, Chief Financial Officer of
Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C3%D, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarb@rkey Act of 2002, that, to the best of
knowledge and belief, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExafeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiplyesents, in all material respects, the finanaiadition and results of operations
the Company.

REELC'S, INC.

Date: March 25, 2014 By: /s/ David J. William:
David J. Williams
Interim Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer







